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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
[X] Quarterly Report Pursuant To Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act Of 1934
For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2019
[ ] Transition Report Under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act Of 1934
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Commission File Number: 333-154799

SYLIOS CORP
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Florida
(State or other jurisdiction of
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(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)
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NOT APPLICABLE
(Former name or former address if changed since last report)
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months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes [X] No [ ]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes [X] No [ ]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a small reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “non-accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting company”
in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer [ ]
Non-accelerated filer [ ]
Emerging growth company [ ]

Accelerated filer [ ]
Smaller reporting company [X]

If an emerging growth company, indicate by checkmark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for
complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. [ ]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes [ ] No [X]
State the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’s classes of common equity, as of the latest practicable date: 30,504,701
shares of common stock as of November 19, 2019.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
This quarterly report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,” “may,”
“should,” “could,” “will,” “plan,” “future,” “continue, “and other expressions that are predictions of or indicate future events and trends
and that do not relate to historical matters identify forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based largely on
our expectations or forecasts of future events, can be affected by inaccurate assumptions, and are subject to various business risks and
known and unknown uncertainties, a number of which are beyond our control. Therefore, actual results could differ materially from the
forward-looking statements contained in this document, and readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking
statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. A wide variety of factors could cause or contribute to such differences and could adversely
impact revenues, profitability, cash flows and capital needs. There can be no assurance that the forward-looking statements contained in
this document will, in fact, transpire or prove to be accurate. These statements are only predictions and involve known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other factors, including the risks in the section entitled “Risk Factors” that may cause our or our industry’s actual
results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity, performance
or achievements expressed or implied by any forward-looking statements.
Important factors that may cause the actual results to differ from the forward-looking statements, projections or other expectations
include, but are not limited to, the following:
●

risk that we will not be able to remediate identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting and
disclosure controls and procedures;

●

risk that we fail to meet the requirements of the agreements under which we acquired our business interests, including any cash
payments to the business operations, which could result in the loss of our right to continue to operate or develop the specific
businesses described in the agreements;

●

risk that we will be unable to secure additional financing in the near future in order to commence and sustain our planned
development and growth plans;

●

risk that we cannot attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel, particularly employees, consultants and contractors for our
operations;

●

risks and uncertainties relating to the various industries and operations we are currently engaged in;

●

results of initial feasibility, pre-feasibility and feasibility studies, and the possibility that future growth, development or
expansion will not be consistent with our expectations;

●

risks related to the inherent uncertainty of business operations including profit, cost of goods, production costs and cost
estimates and the potential for unexpected costs and expenses;

●

risks related to commodity price fluctuations;

●

the uncertainty of profitability based upon our history of losses;

●

risks related to failure to obtain adequate financing on a timely basis and on acceptable terms for our planned development
projects;

●

risks related to environmental regulation and liability;

●

risks related to tax assessments;

●

other risks and uncertainties related to our prospects, properties and business strategy.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee
future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date of this report. Except as required by law, we do not undertake to update or revise any of the
forward-looking statements to conform these statements to actual results, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise.
As used in this quarterly report, “Sylios,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” or “our” refer to Sylios Corp unless otherwise indicated.
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F-1

F-2
F-3
F-4
F-5
F-6
F-7

SYLIOS CORP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
September 30, 2019
(Unaudited)

December 31, 2018

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Inventory

$

Total current assets
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net
OTHER ASSETS
Global Technologies, Ltd (entity controlled by Jimmy Wayne Anderson)
(“GTLL”) Series L Convertible Preferred Stock
Loans receivable from GTLL
Oil and gas royalty interests
Oil and gas operating bonds
-Investments in and advances to spun-off former subsidiaries:
The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc.
AMDAQ Corp
TOTAL ASSETS

83
-

$

28,005
-

83

28,005

80,248

76,814

5,613
24,500

24,500

-

-

$

110,444

$

129,319

$

59,864
481,464
482,025
1,480,317
138,000
5,372
1,243,724
3,890,766

$

29,585
804,335
439,414
1,440,242
148,000
3,762
8,683,257
11,548,595

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued officer and director compensation
Accrued interest on notes payable
Notes payable, third parties
Notes payable, related parties
Loans, related parties
Derivative liability
Total current liabilities
Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO’s)
TOTAL LIABILITIES
STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIENCY
Preferred stock: 5,000,000 shares authorized, par value $.001, as of September
30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, there are the following shares outstanding:
Series A: 1,000,000 and 1,000,000, respectively
Series B: 0 and 0, respectively
Series C: 0 and 0, respectively
Series D: 100 and 100, respectively
Common stock: 750,000,000 shares authorized, par value $.001, as of
September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, there are 29,504,701 and
5,909,113 shares outstanding, respectively.
Additional paid in capital
Accumulated Deficit
Total stockholders’ (deficiency)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIENCY

$

64,500
3,955,266

64,500
11,613,095

1,000
-

1,000
-

29,505
10,565,552
(14,440,879)

5,909
8,981,912
(20,472,597)

(3,844,822)

(11,483,776)

110,444

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SYLIOS CORP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
September 30, 2019
Revenue earned
Consulting fees

$

Total revenue earned
Operating Expenses
Officer and director compensation, including stock-based compensation of
$306,000 and $30,000, respectively
Professional fees
Other operating expenses
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Other income (expenses)
Income from modification of convertible notes payable
Loss on conversions of notes payable
Derivative liability income (expense)
Amortization of debt discounts
Gain from marketable securities
Interest expense
Total other income (expenses)
Net income (loss) before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes

(Unaudited)
September 30, 2018

2,500

$

2,500

2,500

558,500
576,400
103,259

250,442
3,194
11,487

1,238,159

265,123

(1,235,569)

(262,623)

(130,499)
7,598,183
(119,953)
7,283
(87,637)

343,540
(30,460)
(98,938)
(12,227)
(152,703)

7,267,377

49,212

6,031,718

(213,411)

-

Net income (loss)
Basic and diluted income (loss) per common share
Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic and diluted

-

$

6,031,718

$

(213,411)

$

.53
11,463,947

$

(0.08)
2,737,471

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SYLIOS CORP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the three months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (unaudited)
(Unaudited)
September 30, 2019
Revenue earned
Consulting fees

$

Total revenue earned
Operating Expenses
Officer and director compensation, including stock-based compensation of
$10,000 and $10,000, respectively
Professional fees
Other operating expenses
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Other income (expenses)
Income from modification of convertible note payable
Loss on conversions of notes payable
Derivative liability income (expense)
Amortization of debt discounts
Gain (loss) from marketable securities
Interest expense
Total other income (expenses)
Net income (loss) before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes

(Unaudited)
September 30, 2018
-

$

-

2,500

87,500
11,500
17,977

87,500
500
3,488

116,977

91,488

(116,977)

(88,988)

(18,522)
(12,463)
(56,739)
(47,317)

(30,460)
(6,350)
(48,663)

(135,041)

(85,473)

(252,018)

(174,461)

-

Net income (loss)
Basic and diluted income (loss) per common share
Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic and diluted

-

$

(252,018)

$

(174,461)

$

(.02)
14,231,779

$

(0.06)
2,737,471

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SYLIOS CORP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIENCY)
For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (unaudited)
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019:
Series A Preferred
stock
Shares
Amount
Balances at December 31, 2018
Unaudited:
Issuance of common stock in satisfaction of
convertible debt and accrued interest
Issuance of common stock to consultant in
satisfaction of account payable to consultant
Issuance of common stock chargeable as professional
fees to Valvasone Trust and affiliate for services of
independent financial advisor (7% stockholder of
Company)
Transfer of 750,000 shares of The Greater Cannabis
Company, Inc. common stock ($157,500 fair value)
to Valvasone Trust in satisfaction of $107,000 notes
payable and $9,100 accrued interest
Transfer of 4,000,000 shares of The Greater Cannabis
Company, Inc. common stock ($840,000 fair value)
in satisfaction of $544,000 accrued officer’s
compensation
Round up shares after reverse split
Net income for the three months ended March 31,
2019
Balances at March 31, 2019
Issuance of restricted common stock to Company
chief executive officer for director compensation for
1st quarter 2019
Net loss for the three months ended June 30, 2019
Balances at June 30, 2019
Issuance of common stock in satisfaction of
convertible debt and accrued interest
Issuance of common stock for purchase of inventory
Net loss for the three months ended September 30,
2019
Balances at September 30, 2019

1,000,000

$ 1,000

Series D Preferred
stock
Shares
Amount
100

$

Common Stock
Shares
Amount

-

Additional
Paid in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Total

$ (20,472,597)

$(11,483,776)

5,909,113

$ 5,909

$ 8,981,912

1,130,651

1,131

112,588

113,719

-

-

-

-

37,500

37

14,963

-

15,000

-

-

-

-

4,500,000

4,500

445,500

-

450,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

157,500

-

157,500

-

-

-

-

509

1

840,000
(1)

-

840,000
-

1,000,000

$ 1,000

100

-

11,577,773

$ 11,578

$ 10,552,462

116,822

117

9,883

1,000,000

$ 1,000

100

-

-

1,000,000

1,000

$

$

-

11,694,595

$ 11,695

-

-

1,810,106
16,000,000

1,810
16,000

100

-

29,504,701

29,505

$ 10,562,345

6,473,414
$ (13,999,183)

6,473,414
$ (3,434,143)

(189,678)
$ (14,188,861)

10,000
(189,678)
$ (3,613,821)

19,207
(16,000)

10,565,552

(252,018)
$ (14,440,879)

21,017
(252,018)
$ (3,844,822)

For the nine months ended September 30, 2018:
Series A Preferred
stock
Shares
Amount
Balances at December 31, 2017
Unaudited:
Net loss for the three months ended March 31, 2018
(as restated-see Note Q)
Balances at March 31, 2018
Net income for the three months ended June 30, 2018
Balances at June 30, 2018
Net loss for the three months ended September 30,
2018
Balances at September 30, 2018

Series D Preferred
stock
Shares
Amount

1,000,000

$ 1,000

100

1,000,000
1,000,000

$ 1,000
$ 1,000

100
100

1,000,000

1,000

100

$

$
$

Common Stock
Shares
Amount

Additional
Paid in
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Total

-

2,737,471

$ 2,737

$ 8,875,084

$ (12,761,607)

$ (3,882,786)

-

2,737,471
2,737,471

$ 2,737
$ 2,737

$ 8,875,084
$ 8,875,084

(243,480)
$ (13,005,087)
204,550
$ (12,800,537)

(243,480)
$ (4,126,266)
204,550
$ (3,921,716)

-

2,737,471

2,737

8,875,084

(174,461)
$ (12,974,998)

(174,461)
$ (4,096,177)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SYLIOS CORP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
September 30, 2019
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used from operating
activities:
Depreciation
Stock-based professional fees relating to Valvasone Trust and affiliate
Excess of fair value of The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc. common stock
transferred to the Company CEO over accrued officer compensation settled
charged to officer and director compensation
Excess of fair value of The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc. common stock
transferred to Valvasone Trust over notes payable and accrued interest
settled charged to professional fees
Issuance of notes payable to Valvasone Trust for professional fees
Income from modification of non-convertible notes payable
Loss on conversion of notes payable
Derivative liability expense (income)
Amortization of debt discounts
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Inventory
Accounts payable
Accrued officer and director compensation
Accrued interest on notes payable
Net cash provided (used) from operating activities

$

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Computer software and hardware additions
Advances to GTLL
Advances to spun-off former subsidiary, The Greater Cannabis Company,
Inc.
Net cash used by investing activities

(Unaudited)
September 30, 2018

6,031,718

$

(213,411)

726
450,000

726
-

296,000

-

41,400
20,000
130,499
(7,598,183)
119,953

(343,540)
30,460
98,938
12,227

30,279
231,129
92,570
(153,909)

1,078
250,442
152,703
(10,377)

(4,160)
(5,613)

-

9,773)

(3,389)
(3,389)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Loans, related parties, net
Proceeds from notes payable
Repayment of note payable
Net cash provided from financing activities

(1,610)
137,150
(3,000)
135,760

(5,993)
20,000
14,007

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

(27,922)

CASH, BEGINNING OF PERIOD

241

28,005

CASH, END OF PERIOD
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Taxes paid
Interest paid
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of notes payable to Valvasone Trust for professional services
Initial derivative liability charged to debt discounts
Transfer of 750,000 shares of The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc. common
stock ($157,500 fair value) to Valvasone Trust in satisfaction of $107,000
notes payable and $9,100 accrued interest
Transfer of 4,000,000 shares of The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc. common
stock ($840,000 fair value) in satisfaction of $544,000 accrued officer’s
compensation
Issuance of common stockfor the purchase of surplus inventory
Issuance of common stock (total fair value of $134,737 in 2019) to convertible
noteholders in satisfaction of:
Notes payable
Accrued interest
Subtotal
Loss on conversion of notes payable
Total fair value of common stock issued
Issuance of common stock to consultant in settlement of account payable to
consultant
Issuance of common stock in satisfaction of accrued director’s compensation

2

$

83

$

243

$
$

-

$
$

-

$
$

20,000
107,150

$
$

-

$

157,500

$

-

$
$

840,000
-

$
$

-

$

$

-

$

1,445
2,793
4,238
130,499
134,737

$
$

15,000
10,000

$
$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SYLIOS CORP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE A – ORGANIZATION
Sylios Corp (f/k/a US Natural Gas Corp) (“Sylios”, the “Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our”) was organized as a Florida Corporation on
March 28, 2008 under the name of Adventure Energy, Inc. Sylios has four wholly owned subsidiaries: (i) US Natural Gas Corp KY
(“USNG KY”), a corporation incorporated in Florida on February 1, 2010; (ii) US Natural Gas Corp WV (“USNG WV”) a corporation
incorporated in Tennessee on August 25, 2009 and redomiciled in Florida on April 26, 2010; (iii) E 3 Petroleum Corp (“E 3”) a
corporation incorporated in Florida on February 2, 2010; and (iv) 1720 RCMG, LLC (“RCMG”) a limited liability company formed in
the State of Florida on July 24, 2019.
Effective March 10, 2017, Sylios distributed approximately 80.01% of the common stock of The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc.
(“GCAN”), a former wholly owned subsidiary of Sylios organized in Florida on March 13, 2014. Please see NOTE G INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO SPUN-OFF FORMER SUBSIDIARIES for further information.
Effective October 2, 2017, Sylios distributed approximately 41.05% of the common stock of AMDAQ Corp (formerly E 2 Investments,
LLC) (“AMDAQ”), a former wholly owned subsidiary of Sylios organized in Florida on July 20, 2009. Please see NOTE G INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO SPUN-OFF FORMER SUBSIDIARIES and NOTE R- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS for
further information.
Effective December 28, 2018, Sylios effected a 1 share for 4,000 shares reverse stock split of its common stock reducing the number of
issued and outstanding shares of its common stock from 10,949,884,000 to 2,737,471 shares. The accompanying financial statements
retroactively reflect the reverse stock split.
Sylios owns vacant land in Macon, GA, which subject to receipt of adequate financing, it plans upon developing a storage facility for
customer rentals. Please see NOTE C - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT for further information. USNG KY was granted royalty
interests in 13 oil and gas wells in Kentucky (that had been shut-in since 2014) that it had acquired several years prior to the year ended
December 31, 2017, which were sold to a third party in 2018. Please see NOTE E - OIL AND GAS ROYALTY INTERESTS for
further information.
On September 5, 2019, the Company filed a Form 8-A12G with the Securities and Exchange Commission to become a mandatory filer
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
This summary of significant accounting policies of the Company is presented to assist in understanding the Company’s financial
statements. The financial statements and notes are representations of the Company’s management, which is responsible for their
integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and have
been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.
Interim Financial Statements
The unaudited condensed financial statements of the Company for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for interim financial
information and pursuant to the requirements for reporting on Form 10-Q and Regulation S-K. Accordingly, they do not include all the
information and footnotes required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for complete financial
statements. However, such information reflects all adjustments (consisting solely of normal recurring adjustments), which are, in the
opinion of management, necessary for the fair presentation of the financial position and the results of operations. Results shown for
interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be obtained for a full fiscal year. The balance sheet information as of
December 31, 2018 was derived from the audited financial statements included in the Company’s financial statements as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2018 included in the Company’s Amendment No. 2 to Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”). These financial statements should be read in conjunction with that report.
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Sylios Corp and its wholly owned subsidiaries, US Natural Gas Corp KY,
US Natural Gas Corp WV, E 3 Petroleum Corp and 1720 RCMG, LLC. All inter-company balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.
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SYLIOS CORP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Cash Equivalents
Investments having an original maturity of 90 days or less that are readily convertible into cash are considered to be cash equivalents.
For the periods presented, the Company had no cash equivalents.
Income Taxes
In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740 - Income Taxes, the provision for income taxes is computed using the
asset and liability method. The asset and liability method measures deferred income taxes by applying enacted statutory rates in effect at
the balance sheet date to the differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts on the financial
statements. The resulting deferred tax assets or liabilities are adjusted to reflect changes in tax laws as they occur. A valuation allowance
is provided when it is not more likely than not that a deferred tax asset will be realized.
We expect to recognize the financial statement benefit of an uncertain tax position only after considering the probability that a tax
authority would sustain the position in an examination. For tax positions meeting a “more-likely-than-not” threshold, the amount to be
recognized in the financial statements will be the benefit expected to be realized upon settlement with the tax authority. For tax positions
not meeting the threshold, no financial statement benefit is recognized. As of December 31, 2018, we had no uncertain tax positions. We
recognize interest and penalties, if any, related to uncertain tax positions as general and administrative expenses. We currently have no
federal or state tax examinations nor have we had any federal or state examinations since our inception. To date, we have not incurred
any interest or tax penalties.
Financial Instruments and Fair Value of Financial Instruments
We adopted ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis. ASC Topic 820 establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to existing US GAAP that requires the use of fair
value measurements that establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about such fair value measurements.
ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Additionally, ASC Topic 820 requires the use of valuation techniques that
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. These inputs are prioritized below:
Level 1:
Level 2:
Level 3:

Observable inputs such as quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data
Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data, which require the use of the reporting entity’s own
assumptions.

The carrying value of financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value is measured on a recurring or nonrecurring basis. Financial
assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis are those that are adjusted to fair value each time a financial statement is prepared.
Financial assets and liabilities measured on a non-recurring basis are those that are adjusted to fair value when a significant event
occurs. Except for the derivative liability, we had no financial assets or liabilities carried and measured at fair value on a recurring or
nonrecurring basis during the periods presented.
Oil and Gas Properties
The Company has adopted the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and gas producing activities. Under the successful efforts
method, costs to acquire mineral interests in oil and gas properties, to drill and equip exploratory wells that find proved reserves, and to
drill and equip developmental wells are capitalized. Costs to drill exploratory wells that do not find proved reserves, costs of
developmental wells on properties the Company has no further interest in, geological and geophysical costs, and costs of carrying and
retaining unproved properties are expensed.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
When a property is determined to contain proved reserves, the capitalized costs of such properties are transferred from unproved
properties to proved properties and are amortized by the unit-of-production method based upon estimated proved developed reserves. To
the extent that capitalized costs of groups of proved properties having similar characteristics exceed the estimated future net cash flows,
the excess, if any, of capitalized costs are written down to the present value of such amounts. Estimated future net cash flows are
determined based primarily upon the estimated future proved reserves related to the Company’s current proved properties and, to a
lesser extent, certain future net cash flows related to operating and related fees. The Company follows U.S. GAAP in Accounting for
Impairments.
On sale or abandonment of an entire interest in a proved property, gain or loss is recognized, taking into consideration the amount of any
recorded impairment. If a partial interest in a proved property is sold, the amount received is treated as a reduction of the cost of the
interest retained. (Please see NOTE E - OIL AND GAS ROYALTY INTERESTS for further information.).
Derivative Liabilities
We evaluate convertible notes payable, stock options, stock warrants and other contracts to determine if those contracts or embedded
components of those contracts qualify as derivatives to be separately accounted for under the relevant sections of ASC Topic 815-40,
Derivative Instruments and Hedging: Contracts in Entity’s Own Equity.
The result of this accounting treatment could be that the fair value of a financial instrument is classified as a derivative instrument and is
marked-to-market at each balance sheet date and recorded as a liability. In the event that the fair value is recorded as a liability, the
change in fair value is recorded in the statement of operations as other income or other expense. Upon conversion or exercise of a
derivative instrument, the instrument is marked to fair value at the conversion date and then that fair value is reclassified to equity.
Financial instruments that are initially classified as equity that become subject to reclassification under ASC Topic 815-40 are
reclassified to a liability account at the fair value of the instrument on the reclassification date.
Long-lived Assets
Long-lived assets such as property and equipment and intangible assets are periodically reviewed for impairment. We test for
impairment losses on long-lived assets used in operations whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of an asset to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to the future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such asset is considered to be
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value.
Impairment evaluations involve management’s estimates on asset useful lives and future cash flows. Actual useful lives and cash flows
could be different from those estimated by management which could have a material effect on our reporting results and financial
positions. Fair value is determined through various valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models, quoted market values
and third-party independent appraisals, as considered necessary.
Marketable Equity Securities
Marketable equity securities are stated at market value with unrealized gains and losses included in operations. The Company has
classified its marketable equity securities as trading securities.
Deferred Financing Costs
Deferred financing costs represent costs incurred in the connection with obtaining debt financing. These costs are amortized ratably and
charged to financing expenses over the term of the related debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Equity Instruments Issued to Non-Employees for Acquiring Goods or Services
Issuances of our common stock or warrants for acquiring goods or services are measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or the fair value of the equity instruments issued, whichever is more reliably measurable. The measurement date for the fair value of the
equity instruments issued to consultants or vendors is determined at the earlier of (i) the date at which a commitment for performance to
earn the equity instruments is reached (a “performance commitment” which would include a penalty considered to be of a magnitude
that is a sufficiently large disincentive for nonperformance) or (ii) the date at which performance is complete.
Although situations may arise in which counter performance may be required over a period of time, the equity award granted to the
party performing the service is fully vested and non-forfeitable on the date of the agreement. As a result, in this situation in which
vesting periods do not exist if the instruments are fully vested on the date of agreement, we determine such date to be the measurement
date and will record the estimated fair market value of the instruments granted as a prepaid expense and amortize such amount to
expense over the contract period. When it is appropriate for us to recognize the cost of a transaction during financial reporting periods
prior to the measurement date, for purposes of recognition of costs during those periods, the equity instrument is measured at the thencurrent fair values.
Stock-Based Compensation
We account for share-based awards to employees in accordance with ASC 718 “Stock Compensation”. Under this guidance, stock
compensation expense is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as an expense over the
estimated service period (generally the vesting period) on the straight-line attribute method. Share-based awards to non-employees are
accounted for in accordance with ASC 505-50 “Equity”, wherein such awards are expensed over the period in which the related services
are rendered.
Related Parties
A party is considered to be related to us if the party directly or indirectly or through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with us. Related parties also include our principal owners, our management, members of the immediate
families of our principal owners and our management and other parties with which we may deal if one party controls or can significantly
influence the management or operating policies of the other to an extent that one of the transacting parties might be prevented from fully
pursuing its own separate interests. A party which can significantly influence the management or operating policies of the transacting
parties, or if it has an ownership interest in one of the transacting parties and can significantly influence the other to an extent that one or
more of the transacting parties might be prevented from fully pursuing its own separate interests, is also a related party.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) the price is fixed
or determinable, (3) collectability is reasonably assured, and (4) delivery has occurred.
Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. For the periods presented, we had no advertising costs.
Loss per Share
We compute net loss per share in accordance with FASB ASC 260. The ASC specifies the computation, presentation and disclosure
requirements for loss per share for entities with publicly held common stock.
Basic loss per share amounts are computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding.
Diluted net loss per common share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common shares and dilutive securities
(such as stock options, warrants and convertible securities) outstanding. Dilutive securities having an anti-dilutive effect on diluted net
loss per share are excluded from the calculation. For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, the Company excluded
143,501,923 and 2,628,416 shares, respectively relating to convertible notes payable to third parties (Please see NOTE J - NOTES
PAYABLE, THIRD PARTIES for further information), 7,800,000 and 7,800,000 shares, respectively, relating to the Series A
Preferred stock and 69,444,444 and 1,562,500 shares, respectively, relating to the Series D Preferred stock from the calculation of
diluted shares outstanding as the effect of their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Recently Enacted Accounting Standards
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, which will supersede nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP. The core
principle of ASU 2014-09 is to recognize revenues when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 defines a five-step process
to achieve this core principle and, in doing so, more judgment and estimates may be required within the revenue recognition process
than are required under existing U.S. GAAP. As amended by the FASB in July 2015, the standard is effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods therein, using either of the following transition methods: (i) a full retrospective
approach reflecting the application of the standard in each prior reporting period with the option to elect certain practical expedients, or
(ii) a retrospective approach with the cumulative effect of initially adopting ASU 2014-09 recognized at the date of adoption (which
includes additional footnote disclosures). ASU 2014-09 has not had any significant effect on our Financial statements for the periods
presented.
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), to provide guidance on recognizing lease assets and lease
liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements, specifically differentiating between different
types of leases. The core principle of Topic 842 is that a lessee should recognize the assets and liabilities that arise from all leases. The
recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee have not significantly changed
from previous GAAP. There continues to be a differentiation between finance leases and operating leases. However, the principal
difference from previous guidance is that the lease assets and lease liabilities arising from operating leases should be recognized in the
balance sheet. The accounting applied by a lessor is largely unchanged from that applied under previous GAAP. The amendments will
be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years, and early adoption is
permitted. In transition, lessees and lessors are required to recognize and measure leases at the beginning of the earliest period presented
using a modified retrospective approach. The modified retrospective approach includes a number of optional practical expedients that
entities may elect to apply. These practical expedients relate to the identification and classification of leases that commenced before the
effective date, initial direct costs for leases that commenced before the effective date, and the ability to use hindsight in evaluating lessee
options to extend or terminate a lease or to purchase the underlying asset. An entity that elects to apply the practical expedients will, in
effect, continue to account for leases that commence before the effective date in accordance with previous GAAP unless the lease is
modified, except that lessees are required to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all operating leases at each reporting
date based on the present value of the remaining minimum rental payments that were tracked and disclosed under previous GAAP. ASU
No. 2016-02 has not had any significant effect on our Financial statements for the periods presented.
On July 13, 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2017-11. Among
other things, ASU 2017-11 provides guidance that eliminates the requirement to consider “down round” features when determining
whether certain financial instruments or embedded features are indexed to an entity’s stock and need to be classified as liabilities. ASU
2017-11 provides for entities to recognize the effect of a down round feature only when it is triggered and then as a dividend and a
reduction to income available to common stockholders in basic earnings per share. The guidance is effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2018; early adoption is permitted.
The Company has early adopted ASU 2017-11. As a result, we have not recognized the fair value of the warrants containing down
round features as liabilities. Please see NOTE N - CAPITAL STOCK for further information.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company defines the fair value of a financial instrument as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties. Financial instruments included in the Company’s financial statements include cash, accounts
payable and accrued expenses, accrued interest payable, loans payable to related parties, notes payable to third parties, notes payable to
related parties and derivative liability. Unless otherwise disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, the carrying value of financial
instruments is considered to approximate fair value due to the short maturity and characteristics of those instruments. The carrying value
of debt approximates fair value as terms approximate those currently available for similar debt instruments.
NOTE C - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consist of the following at:
September 30, 2019
(Unaudited)
Land and storage facility costs development plans (pledged as security for
promissory note of $75,000. Please see NOTE – I for further information)
Computer Software and Hardware
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment
Total
Accumulated depreciation and depletion
Net property and equipment

December 31, 2018

75,000
24,160
10,828
109,988
(29,740)
$

80,248

75,000
20,000
10,828
105,828
(29,014)
$

76,814

On October 6, 2018, the Company entered into a Commercial Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement with the Company’s President
for the purchase of a .92 acre of land located in Bibb County, GA. The purchase price for the land was $40,000.
On this same date, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with its President for the purchase of all architectural and
engineering plans for the development of a storage facility to be constructed on the .92 acre of land. The purchase price for these assets
was $35,000.
The Company issued its President a Note in the amount of $75,000 on this same date. The Note has a term of one year and bears interest
at 3%. The Company’s first payment in the amount of $15,000 was due within 90 days of an effective reverse stock split. As of the date
of issuance of these Financial statements, except for a $5,000 payment made by the Company to the Company’s president on November
12, 2018, the Company has not made any payment against the Note.
The Company uses the straight-line method of depreciation for computer software and furniture, fixtures and equipment over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets. For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, depreciation expense relating to
property and equipment was $726 and $726, respectively.
NOTE D - INVENTORY
Inventory consist of the following at:
September 30, 2019
(Unaudited)

December 31, 2018
-

Squeezee scrubbers
Ampt earbuds
Net property and equipment

$

-

$

-

On September 12, 2019, the Company entered into an Inventory Purchase Agreement with Wanshan Engineering Services, LLC for the
purchase of surplus inventory. The Company purchased 30,000 Squeeze Soap Filled Scrubbers for the purchase price of $100,000 via
the issuance of 10,000,000 shares of Sylios restricted common stock. The Closing of the transaction occurred on September 15, 2019.
On September 21, 2019, the Company entered into an Inventory Purchase Agreement with Wanshan Engineering Services, LLC for the
purchase of surplus inventory. The Company purchased 1,000 Ampt wireless earbuds for the purchase price of $60,000 via the issuance
of 6,000,000 shares of Sylios restricted common stock. The Closing of the transaction occurred on September 25, 2019.
The Company’s plans are to retain a third-party consultant to develop an ecommerce website for each product and to initiate sales of
each product in 2020. The products are currently stored in a warehouse in Largo, FL.
To the date of the issuance of these financial statements, the Company has yet to engage a third-party consultant to develop an
e-commerce website for each product at an agreed upon cost or initiate sales of the products. Accordingly, no value has been assigned to
the inventory because no funding is yet available to fund the website or marketing of the products.
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NOTE E - OIL AND GAS ROYALTY INTERESTS
Oil and gas royalty interests consist of:
September 30, 2019
(Unaudited)
Royalty interests in 13 wells located in Kentucky, acquired in 2009, shut-in since
2014, and sold to Soligen Technologies, Inc. on May 10, 2018 (1)
Royalty interest in oil well located in Fentress County, Tennessee, acquired in
September 2015 and shut-in since September 2015. (2)
Royalty interest in oil well located in Cumberland County, Kentucky, acquired in
September 2015 and shut-in since September 2015. (3)
Totals

$

$

December 31, 2018
-

$

-

-

-

-

-

-

$

-

(1) Pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement dated May 10, 2018, USNG KY was granted a royalty interest resulting from the sale
of these wells equal to 30% of the gross proceeds of production from the 13 wells and 10% of the gross proceeds of production
from any new drilled wells on the sold leases up to a maximum of $140,000. From 2014 to the date of issuance of these
financial statements, there has been no production from these wells.
No gain or loss has been recognized from the sale of these wells. No guaranteed royalty revenue was granted to the Company
in the sale, only a royalty interest dependent on future production. There was no remaining carrying value for these wells at the
time of the sale as the wells were fully impaired prior to the year ended December 31, 2017.
(2) Represents a 79.5% royalty interest up to $11,500 and a 15% royalty interest thereafter. From September 2015 to the date of
issuance of these financial statements, there has been no production from this well. Effective December 31, 2018, the Company
recognized an impairment loss of $7,500 and reduced the carrying cost of this asset from $7,500 to $0.
(3) Represents a 5% royalty interest. From September 2015 to the date of issuance of these financial statements, there has been no
production from this well. Effective December 31, 2018, the Company recognized an impairment loss of $2,500 and reduced
the carrying cost of this asset from $2,500 to $0.
NOTE F – OIL AND GAS OPERATING BONDS
The Company is required to put up for bond either cash or a Surety bond for each well it elects to act as operator. The amount of the
bond is calculated based on the total depth of the well. In the event the Company were to abandon the wells, the Kentucky Department
of Natural Resources would claim the cash bond and use the funds for reclamation.
The Company hopes to reclaim the cash bonds totaling $24,500 for the 13 wells sold in the Asset Purchase Agreement with Soligen
Technologies, Inc. when Soligen replaces the Company’s cash bonds by funding with its own bond, which has not yet occurred at the
date of issuance of these financial statements. Please see NOTE E - OIL AND GAS ROYALTY INTERESTS for further information.
NOTE G - INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO SPUN-OFF FORMER SUBSIDIARIES
The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc.
Effective March 10, 2017, in connection with a partial spin-off of The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc. (“GCAN”) from the Company,
the Company issued a total of 26,905,969 shares of GCAN common stock. 5,378,476 shares were issued to itself (representing 19.9% of
the issued and outstanding shares of GCAN common stock after the spin-off) and 21,527,493 shares were issued to the stockholders of
record of the Company on February 3, 2017 on the basis of one share of GCAN common stock for each 500 shares of the Company’s
common stock held (representing 80.1% of the issued and outstanding shares of GCAN common stock after the spin-off). The related
Registration Statement on Form S-1 was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 31, 2017. The
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) cleared the quotation of GCAN common stock on July 10, 2018 under the symbol
“GCAN.”
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NOTE G - INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO SPUN-OFF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States require that an entity’s distribution of shares of a wholly owned or
consolidated subsidiary to be recorded based on the carrying value of the subsidiary. The partial spin-off was recorded at the carrying
value of GCAN’s net assets which was a deficit of $113,922 as of March 10, 2017, as follows:
ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Notes payable to Sylios
Accrued interest on notes payable to Sylios
Loans payable to related parties:
Due to Chief Executive Officer of Sylios
Due to two subsidiaries of Sylios
Total liabilities
Net Assets

$

-

$

104,557
7,604

$

1,477
284
113,922
(113,922)

Operations of GCAN for the period January 1, 2017 to March 10, 2017 (while GCAN was a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
have been included in the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2017, as follows:
Revenues

$

Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Interest
Total expenses
Net loss

$

$

4,557
577
5,134
(5,134)

Since GCAN had negative assets at the March 10, 2017 effective date of the spin-off, the Company recorded its 19.9% investment in
GCAN at $0.
At September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Company held 628,476 (1.81% of the issued and outstanding common shares) and
5,378,476 (16.87% of the issued and outstanding common shares) shares of common stock of GCAN, respectively. On January 9, 2019,
the Company transferred 4,000,000 shares of GCAN common stock (fair value of $840,000) to Wayne Anderson to satisfy liabilities of
$544,000. Also, on January 9, 2019 the Company transferred 750,000 shares of GCAN common stock (fair value of $157,500) to
Valvasone Trust to satisfy liabilities of $116,100.
AMDAQ Corp
On September 1, 2017, AMDAQ Corp (“AMDAQ”) acquired AMDAQ, Ltd. (“Limited”), a corporation formed under the Registrar of
Companies for England and Wales in March 2016, in exchange for 15,000,000 shares of AMDAQ common stock (representing
approximately 46% of the 32,552,818 issued and outstanding shares of AMDAQ common stock after the transaction). As of the
September 1, 2017 acquisition date. Limited had no assets and no liabilities. For the period from January 1, 2017 to September 1, 2017,
Limited had no revenues and expenses of $12,327. From September 1, 2017 to October 2, 2017, Limited had no revenues and no
expenses.
Effective October 2, 2017, in connection with a partial spin-off of AMDAQ from the Company, the Company issued a total of
17,552,626 shares of AMDAQ common stock. 2,956,650 shares were issued to itself (representing 9.1% of the issued and outstanding
shares of AMDAQ common stock after the spin-off) and 14,595,976 shares were issued to the stockholders of record of the Company on
September 15, 2017 on the basis of one share of AMDAQ common stock for each 750 shares of the Company’s common stock held
(representing 44.8% of the issued and outstanding shares of AMDAQ common stock after the spin-off). AMDAQ plans to file a
Registration Statement on Form S-1 during the fourth quarter of 2019.
Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States require that an entity’s distribution of shares of a wholly owned or
consolidated subsidiary to be recorded based on the carrying value of the subsidiary. The partial spin-off was recorded at the carrying
value of AMDAQ’s net assets which was a deficit of $21,319 as of October 2, 2017, as follows:
ASSETS
Loans receivable from USNG KY
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Loans payable to Sylios:
Total liabilities
Net Assets

$

41,714
41,714

$

63,033
63,033
(21,319)

$
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NOTE G - INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO SPUN-OFF FORMER SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
AMDAQ had no revenues or expenses for the period January 1, 2017 to October 2, 2017 (while AMDAQ was a subsidiary of the
Company).
Since AMDAQ had negative assets at the October 2, 2017 effective date of the spin-off, the Company recorded its 9.1% investment in
AMDAQ at $0.
On October 16, 2017, AMDAQ acquired 1,000,000 Ethereum compliant tokens from two business associates in exchange for 3,000,000
shares of AMDAQ common stock.
At September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Company held 2,956,650 (13.47% of the issued and outstanding common shares)
and 2,956,650 (7.69% of the issued and outstanding common shares) shares of common stock of AMDAQ, respectively. On January 7,
2019, the prior owner of AMDAQ, Ltd and the prior owners of the AMDAQ tokens agreed to a reduction in the number of common
shares of AMDAQ Corp that they would retain. Of the 15,000,000 shares of AMDAQ Corp common stock issued to the prior owner of
AMDAQ, Ltd, 7,500,000 were returned to AMDAQ Corp to be retired. Of the 3,000,000 shares of AMDAQ Corp common stock issued
for the purchase of the AMDAQ tokens, 1,500,000 were returned to AMDAQ Corp to be retired.
NOTE H – ACQUISITION OF GLOBAL TECHNOLOGIES, LTD (ENTITY CONTROLLED BY WAYNE ANDERSON)
SERIES L CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
Effective August 22, 2019, the Company entered into a Consulting Agreement with Global Technologies, Ltd. (“GTLL”) pursuant to
which GTLL issued 10 shares of GTLL Series L Convertible Preferred Stock to the Company. Wayne Anderson, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, has voting control of GTLL through his ownership of Series K Super Voting Preferred Stock which he
acquired on August 2, 2019.
Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States require that an equity transaction involving entities under common control
are to be recorded based on the carrying value of the assets acquired. The transaction was recorded at GTLL’s carrying value of $0.
According to the most recent available unaudited financial statements of GTLL at June 30, 2019. GTLL’s net assets were:
June 30, 2019
ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Bank overdrafts
Accrued interest
Accrued director’s compensation
Notes payable-third parties
Note payable-related party
Debt discounts
Derivative liability
Total current liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

$

June 30, 2018
-

$

1,689

$

2,028
8,997
15,331
39,803
140,650
124,800
(8,890)
715,350
1,038,069

$

676
8,997
1,320
140,650
(123,270)
281,300
309,673

$
$

1,038,069
(1,038,069)

$

309,673
(307,984)

Operations of GTLL for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:
2019
Revenue earned
Revenue

$

Operating Expenses
Officer and director compensation, including stock-based compensation of
$40,000 and $120,000, respectively
Consulting services
Professional services
Selling, general and administrative
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Other expenses
Interest expense
Derivative liability loss (gain)
Amortization of debt discounts
Total other expenses
Loss before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net loss

2018
-

$

80,000
124,800
500
2,344

130,000
221,900
6,934

207,644

358,834

(207,644)

(358,834)

14,011
309,250
239,180

1,320
140,650
17,380

562,441

159,350

(770,085)

(518,184)

$

-

(770,085)

$

(518,184)

Since GTLL had negative assets at August 22, 2019, the effective date of the Consulting Agreement, the Company recorded its 10
shares of GTLL Series L Convertible Preferred Stock at $0.
At the date of issuance of these financial statements, the Company still holds the aforementioned 10 shares of GTLL Series L
Convertible Preferred Stock.
NOTE I – ACCRUED OFFICER AND DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
Accrued officer and director compensation is due to Wayne Anderson, the sole officer and director of the Company, and consists of:

Pursuant to April 1, 2015 Employment Agreement
Pursuant to April 1, 2018 Employment Agreement
Pursuant to January 5, 2011 Board of Directors Service Agreement
Pursuant to January 2, 2018 Board of Directors Service Agreement

September 30, 2019
(Unaudited)
$
6,964
405,000
69,500

Total

$

481,464

December 31, 2018
$

561,835
202,500
40,000

$

804,335

For the year ended December 31, 2018 and the three and nine months ended September 30, 2019, the balance of accrued officer and
director compensation changed as follows:
Pursuant to
Board of
Directors
Services
Agreements

Pursuant to
Employment
Agreements
Balance, December 31, 2017
Officer’s/director’s compensation for year ended December 31,
2018
Issuance of 2,176,617 restricted shares of common stock (with a
fair value of $87,500 at a $70,000 agreed reduction of the
liability) on December 31, 2018
Issuance of 995,025 restricted shares of common stock (with a
fair value of $40,000) on December 31, 2018
Balance, December 31, 2018
Officer’s/director’s compensation for three months ended March
31, 2019
Transfer of 4,000,000 shares of The Greater Cannabis Company,
Inc. (“GCAN”) common stock from the Company to the
Company’s sole officer and director
Balance March 31, 2019 (unaudited)
Officer’s/director’s compensation for three months ended June
30, 2019
Cash payments to Officer/Director during the three months ended
June 30, 2019
Issuance of 116,822 restricted shares of common stock (with a
fair value of $10,000) on April 10, 2019
Balance June 30, 2019 (unaudited)
Officer’s/director’s compensation for three months ended
September 30, 2019
Cash payments to Officer/Director during the three months ended
September 30, 2019
Balance September 30, 2019 (unaudited)

$

506,393

70,000

576,393

257,942

80,000

337,942

-

(70,000)

(70,000)

764,335

(40,000)
40,000

(40,000)
804,335

67,500

20,000

87,500

(544,000)
287,835

60,000

(544,000)
347,835

67,500

20,000

87,500

(10,871)

(12,500)

(23,371)

344,464

$

67,500

$
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Total

411,964

(10,000)
57,500

$

20,000

$

(8,000)
69,500

(10,000)
401,964
87,500

$

(8,000)
481,464

SYLIOS CORP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE J - NOTES PAYABLE, THIRD PARTIES
Notes payable to third parties consist of:
September 30, 2019
(Unaudited)
Unsecured Convertible Promissory Note payable to Armada Investment Fund,
LLC (“Armada”), with interest at 8% payable at maturity with principal (default
interest rates ranging from 18% to 24%); convertible into shares of common
stock at a variable conversion price equal to 50%-60% of the Market Price which
is defined as the lowest Trading Price for the common stock during the 20 trading
day period prior to the Conversion Date:
Issue date October 9, 2018, maturity date of October 9, 2019- net of
unamortized debt discount of $740 and $23,178 at September 30, 2019 and
December 31, 2018, respectively
Issue date December 31, 2018, maturity date of December 31, 2019- net of
unamortized debt discount of $8,318 and $33,000 at September 30, 2019 and
December 31, 2018, respectively
Amended and Restated Replacement Convertible Promissory Note, Issue date
February 12, 2019, maturity date of February 12, 2019- net of amounts
converted into Sylios common stock and net of unamortized debt discount of
$8,621 and $0 at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively
Issue date February 18, 2019, maturity date of February 18, 2020- net of
unamortized debt discount of $4,462 and $0 at September 30, 2019 and
December 31, 2018 respectively
Issue date June 5, 2019, maturity date of June 5, 2020- net of unamortized debt
discount of $11,211 and $0 at September 30, 2019, December 31, 2018,
respectively
Issue date July 2, 2019, maturity date of June 5, 2020- net of unamortized debt
discount of $12,107 and $0 at September 30, 2019, December 31, 2018,
respectively
Issue date July 24, 2019, maturity date of July 24, 2020- net of unamortized
debt discount of $12,742 and $0 at September 30, 2019, December 31, 2018,
respectively
Subtotal Armada
Unsecured Convertible Promissory Notes payable to Darling Capital, LLC and its
affiliate Darling Investments, LLC (“Darling”), all in technical default except for
the January 9, 2019 note, with interest at 12% payable at maturity with principal
(default interest rates ranging from 18% to 22%); convertible into shares of
common stock at a variable conversion price equal to 20-40% of the Market
Price, which is defined as the lowest Trading Price for the common stock during
the 25 trading day period prior to the Conversion Date.
Issue date December 2, 2016, maturity date August 2, 2017
Issue date January 10, 2017, maturity date September 10, 2017
Issue date January 28, 2017, maturity date September 28, 2017, net of amounts
converted into Sylios common stock
Issue date February 1, 2017, maturity date November 30, 2017, net of amounts
converted into Sylios common stock
Issue date February 13, 2017, maturity date November 30, 2017
Issue date March 7, 2017, maturity date March 7, 2018, - net of amounts
converted into Sylios common stock
Issue date January 9, 2019, maturity date January 9, 2020, -net of unamortized
debt discount of $3,459 and $0 at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
respectively
Subtotal Darling
Unsecured Convertible Promissory Notes payable to Tangiers Investment Group,
LLC (“Tangiers”), all in technical default, with interest ranging from 0% to 15%
payable at maturity with principal (default interest rates ranging from 0% to
20%); except for the March 16, 2016 Promissory Note, convertible into shares of
common stock at a variable conversion price equal to 50% of the Market Price
(40% for the note due April 25, 2014), which is defined as the lowest Trading
Price for the common stock during the 20 trading day period prior to the
Conversion Date.
Issue date April 2, 2014, maturity date April 2, 2015, net of amounts converted
into Sylios common stock
Issue date April 28, 2014, maturity date April 28, 2015, net of amounts
converted into Sylios common stock
Issue date June 2, 2014, maturity date June 2, 2015, net of amounts converted
into Sylios common stock
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December 31, 2018

29,260

6,822

24,618

-

11,434

-

7,088

-

5,289

-

4,393

-

2,658
84,740

6,822

15,000
5,000

-

8,703

3,984

4,742
10,000

4,742
10,000

10,000

10,000

9,041
62,486

28,726

5,500

3,086

521

521

26,086

26,086

SYLIOS CORP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE J - NOTES PAYABLE, THIRD PARTIES (continued)
Issue date August 12, 2014, maturity date August 12, 2015
Issue date July 3, 2014, maturity date July 3, 2015
Issue date June 3, 2015, maturity date June 3, 2016
Issue date March 16, 2016, maturity date June 14, 2016
Issue date January 27, 2017, maturity date January 27, 2018
Subtotal Tangiers
Unsecured Convertible Promissory Notes payable to Bullfly Trading Company,
Inc. (“Bullfly”), all in technical default until assigned to Armada on February 12,
2019, with interest at 15% payable at maturity with principal, convertible into
shares of common stock at a conversion price equal to a 50% discount to the
5-day moving bid average:
Issue date June 1, 2016, maturity date December 1, 2016
Issue date July 11, 2016, maturity date January 11, 2017
Subtotal Bullfly
Unsecured Convertible Promissory Notes payable to Mountain Properties, Inc.
(“Mountain”), all in technical default until assigned to Armada on February 12,
2019, with interest at 15% payable at maturity with principal, convertible into
shares of common stock at a conversion price equal to a 50% discount to the
5-day moving bid average:
Issue date February 24, 2016, maturity date August 24, 2016
Subtotal Mountain
Secured Renewal Notes payable to SLMI Energy Holdings, LLC (“SLMI”), with
interest at 3% payable on demand with principal, secured by substantially all
assets of the Company per UCC filing dated June 30, 2015:
Issue date June 6, 2018 (renewing note dated September 4, 2009)
Issue date June 6, 2018 (renewing note dated November 12, 2009)
Subtotal SLMI
Secured Note payable to MTEL Investment and Management (“MTEL”) in
technical default, with interest of $50,000 payable at maturity with principal:
Issue date January 11, 2010, maturity date July 10, 2010
Subtotal MTEL
Unsecured Notes payable to Valvasone Trust (“Valvasone”), all in technical
default until satisfied on January 9, 2019, with interest at 3% payable at maturity
with principal:
Issue date October 7, 2013, maturity date January 31, 2014
Issue date March 30, 2014, maturity date June 30, 2014
Issue date January 11, 2016, maturity date March 31, 2016
Issue date July 1, 2017, maturity date September 30, 2017
Subtotal Valvasone
Unsecured Note payable to Mt. Atlas Consulting (“Atlas”) in technical default,
with interest at 20% payable at maturity with principal:
Issue date November 17, 2017, maturity date April 17, 2018
Subtotal Atlas
Unsecured Promissory Note payable to Jefferson Street Capital (“Jefferson”),
with interest at 8% payable at maturity with principal:
Issue date February 18, 2019, maturity date February 18, 2020- net of
unamortized debt discount of $4,462 and $0 at September 30, 2019 and
December 31, 2018, respectively
Issue date May 2, 2019, maturity date February 3, 2020- net of unamortized
debt discount of $5,004 and $0 at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
respectively
Subtotal Jefferson
Unsecured Promissory Note payable to BHP Capital NY, Inc. (“BHP”), with
interest at 8% payable at maturity with principal (default interest rates ranging
from 18% to 24%); convertible into shares of common stock at a variable
conversion price equal to 50%-60% of the Market Price which is defined as the
lowest Trading Price for the common stock during the 20 trading day period prior
to the Conversion Date:
Issue date February 18, 2019, maturity date February 18, 2020- net of
unamortized debt discount of $4,462 and $0 at September 30, 2019 and
December 31, 2018, respectively
Issue date May 2, 2019, maturity date February 3, 2020- net of unamortized
debt discount of $5,004 and $0 at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
respectively
Issue date July 24, 2019, maturity date of July 24, 2020- net of unamortized
debt discount of $12,742 and $0 at September 30, 2019, December 31, 2018,
respectively
Subtotal BHP
Unsecured Promissory Note payable to Fourth Man, LLC. (“FOURTH”), with
interest at 8% payable at maturity with principal (default interest rate of 18%);
convertible into shares of common stock at a variable conversion price equal to
60% of the Market Price which is defined as the lowest Trading Price for the
common stock during the 20 trading day period prior to the Conversion Date:
Issue date July 24, 2019, maturity date of July 24, 2020- net of unamortized
debt discount of $12,742 and $0 at September 30, 2019, December 31, 2018,
respectively

112,500
50,000
17,250
17,500
55,000
284,357

112,500
50,000
17,250
17,500
55,000
281,943

-

4,000
4,000
8,000

-

7,500
7,500

790,000
120,000
910,000

790,000
120,000
910,000

100,000
100,000

100,000
100,000

-

10,000
15,000
22,000
40,000
87,000

4,000
4,000

4,000
4,000

7,088

-

5,996
13,084

-

7,088

-

5,996

-

2,658
15,742

-

2,658

-

Subtotal FOURTH
Unsecured Promissory Note payable to Pacific Stock Transfer Company
(“Pacific”) in technical default, with interest at 5% payable at maturity with
principal:
Issue date August 11, 2017, maturity date November 11, 2017
Subtotal Pacific
Total
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$

2,658

-

3,250
3,250
1,480,317

6,250
6,250
1,440,242

$

SYLIOS CORP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE J - NOTES PAYABLE, THIRD PARTIES (continued)
Concentration of Debt Due Lenders:
SLMI
September 30, 2019
Promissory notes payable, net of discount
Accrued interest:
Stated interest
Additional default interest
Total accrued interest
Total debt (Unaudited)
December 31, 2018
Promissory notes payable, net of discount
Accrued interest:
Stated interest
Additional default interest
Total accrued interest
Total debt

$

910,000

Tangiers

Other

$

284,357

$

299,759
299,759
1,209,759

$

97,094
97,094
381,451

$

910,000

$

$

279,284
279,284
1,189,284

$

281,943
79,145
79,145
361,088

$

285,960

Total

$

1,480,317

$

85,172
85,172
371,132

$

482,025
482,025
1,962,342

$

248,299

$

1,440,242

$

80,985
80,985
329,284

$

439,414
439,414
1,879,656

Interest expense consists of:

Stated interest
Additional default interest

Three Months Ended
September 30,
September 30,
2019
2018
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
$
47,317
$
19,843
28,820

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
September 30,
2019
2018
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
$
87,637
$
59,536
93,167

Totals

$

$

47,317

$

48,663

87,637

$

152,703

The stated interest and additional default interest expense relates to the following lenders:

SLMI
Stated Interest
Additional default interest
Total SLMI

Three Months Ended
September 30,
September 30,
2019
2018
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
$
$
6,825
6,761
12,267
6,825
19,028

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
September 30,
2019
2018
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
$
$
20,475
20,281
42,934
20,475
63,215

Tangiers:
Stated Interest
Additional default interest
Total Tangiers

5,983
5,983

5,900
12,656
18,556

17,949
17,949

17,700
38,345
56,045

Other lenders
Stated Interest
Additional default interest
Total others

34,509
34,509

5,620
3,897
9,517

49,213
49,213

21,555
11,888
33,443

Totals
Stated Interest
Additional default interest
Total all Lenders

47,317
47,317

19,843
28,820
48,663

87,637
87,637

59,536
93,167
152,703

$
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$

$

$

SYLIOS CORP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE J - NOTES PAYABLE, THIRD PARTIES (continued)
Income from modification of convertible and non-convertible notes payable consists of:
Three Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2019
2018
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
Waiver of prior and future additional default interest
pursuant to debt modifications with SLMI Energy
Holdings, LLC on June 8, 2018 (1)
Waiver of prior and future additional default interest
pursuant to debt modifications with Darling Capital, LLC
on December 6, 2018 (2)
Waiver of prior and future additional default interest
pursuant to debt modifications with Tangiers Investment
Group, LLC on December 18, 2018 (2)
Total

$

$

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
September 30,
2019
2018
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)

- $

- $

- $

343,540

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- $

- $

- $

343,540

(1) The debt modifications with SLMI Energy Holdings, LLC (“SLMI”) provide that in the event that the Company does not make a
payment to SMLI within 30 days written notice of demand by SLMI, all unpaid interest accruing since September 4, 2009 (in the case of
the original September 4, 2009 Note) and accruing since November 12, 2009 (in the case of the original November 12, 2009 Note) shall
accrue at a 18% default interest rate rather than the 3% stated interest rate in the Renewal Notes. If that had occurred on December 31,
2018, the additional default interest accruable would have been approximately $1,200,000. As of the date of the issuance of these
financial statements, SLMI has not provided the Company any notice of demand for payment and accordingly, the Company is not in
default of these obligations.
(2) As of the date of the issuance of these financial statements, waivers of the additional default interest for both Darling and Tangiers
obligations remain in effect. However, the Company is still in technical default for the principal and stated interest of these significantly
past-due convertible promissory notes.
Gain on settlement of convertible notes payable consists of:
Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2019
(Unaudited)

Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2018
(Unaudited)

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
September 30,
2019
2018
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)

Company payment of $15,000 on October 5,
2018 in full and final settlement of $130,298
debt and $83,100 accrued interest due Beaufort
Capital Partners, LLC

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

Total

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

Convertible Note Conversions:
During the nine months ended September 30, 2019, the Company issued the following shares of common stock upon the conversions of
portions of the Convertible Notes:
Principal
Conversion

Date
2/7/2019
2/20/2019
8/26/2019
9/9/2019

$

$

1,100
345
1,445

Interest
Conversion
$
642
851
1,300
$
2,793

Total
Conversion
$
642
1,100
1,196
1,300
$
4,238

Conversion
Price
$
0.00106
0.00205
$0.002
$0.00106

Shares
Issued
594,066
536,585
583,523
1,226,583
2,940,757

Issued to
Darling
Armada
Armada
Darling

Loss on conversions of notes payable consists of:

Armada convertible notes
Darling convertible notes

Three Months Ended
September 30,
September 30,
2019
2018
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
$
(7,557) $
(10,966)
(30,460)

Total

$

(18,523)
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$

(30,460)

Nine Months
September 30,
September 30,
2019
2018
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
$
(60,115) $
(70,384)
(30,460)
$

(130,499)

$

(30,460)

SYLIOS CORP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE K - NOTES PAYABLE, RELATED PARTIES
Notes payable to related parties consist of:
September 30, 2019
(Unaudited)
Secured Promissory Note dated October 6, 2018 payable to Wayne Anderson,
CEO of the Company, interest at 3%, due October 6, 2019
Unsecured Promissory Note dated September 15, 2017, payable to Around the
Clock Partners, LP (entity controlled by Wayne Anderson), interest at 3%, due
September 15, 2018
Total

$

70,000

December 31, 2018
$

68,000
$

138,000

70,000
78,000

$

148,000

The Secured Promissory Note dated October 6, 2018 payable to Wayne Anderson (originally in the amount of $75,000) is secured by a
Deed to Secure Debt, Assignment of Rents and Security Agreement relating to the property located in Macon, Georgia (Please see
NOTE C – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT for further information). The Note provides for the Company to make a first payment of
$15,000 within 90 days of an effective reverse stock split. As of the date of issuance of these Financial statements, except for a $5,000
payment made by the Company to Mr. Anderson on November 12, 2018, the Company has not made any payment against the Note.
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SYLIOS CORP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE L - DERIVATIVE LIABILITY
The derivative liability at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 consisted of:
September 30, 2019
(Unaudited)
Convertible Promissory Notes payable to Armada Investment Fund, LLC. Please
see NOTE J – NOTES PAYABLE, THIRD PARTIES for further information
Convertible Promissory Notes payable to Darling Capital, LLC and its affiliate
Darling Investments, LLC. Please see NOTE J – NOTES PAYABLE, THIRD
PARTIES for further information
Convertible Promissory Notes payable to Tangiers Investment Group, LLC.
Please see NOTE J – NOTES PAYABLE, THIRD PARTIES for further
information
Convertible Promissory Notes payable to Bullfly Trading Company, Inc. Please
see NOTE J – NOTES PAYABLE, THIRD PARTIES for further information
Convertible Promissory Note dated February 24, 2016 payable to Mountain
Properties, Inc. Please see NOTE J – NOTES PAYABLE, THIRD PARTIES
for further information
Convertible Promissory Note payable to Jefferson Street Capital, LLC. Please see
NOTE J – NOTES PAYABLE, THIRD PARTIES for further information
Convertible Promissory Note payable to BHP Capital NY, Inc. Please see NOTE
J – NOTES PAYABLE, THIRD PARTIES for further information
Convertible Promissory Note dated July 24, 2019 payable to Fourth Man, LLC.
Please see NOTE J – NOTES PAYABLE, THIRD PARTIES for further
information
Total derivative liability
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$

$

December 31, 2018

278,100

$

1,076,786

230,783

2,248,272

582,805

5,354,400

-

1,960

-

1,838

45,860

-

76,018

-

30,158
1,243,724

$

8,683,257

SYLIOS CORP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE L - DERIVATIVE LIABILITY (continued)
The Convertible Promissory Notes (the “Notes”) contain a variable conversion feature based on the future trading price of the
Company’s common stock. Therefore, the number of shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the Notes is indeterminate.
Accordingly, we have recorded the fair value of the embedded conversion features as a derivative liability at the respective issuance
dates of the notes and charged the applicable amounts to debt discounts (limited to the face value of the respective notes) and the
remainder to other expenses. The increase (decrease) in the fair value of the derivative liability from the respective issue dates of the
notes to the measurement dates is charged (credited) to other expense (income).
The fair value of the derivative liability was measured at the respective issuance dates and at September 30, 2019 and December 31,
2018 using the Black Scholes option pricing model. Assumptions used for the calculation of the derivative liability of the Notes at
September 30, 2019 were (1) stock price of $0.01 per share, (2) conversion prices ranging from $0.0016 to $0.0056 per share, (3) terms
ranging from 8 days to 296 days, (4) expected volatility of 372.06%, and (5) risk free interest rates ranging from 1.79% to 1.91%.
Assumptions used for the calculation of the derivative liability of the Notes at December 31, 2018 were (1) stock price of $0.0402 per
share, (2) conversion prices ranging from $0.0008 to $0.164 per share, (3) terms ranging from 6 months to 12 months, (4) expected
volatility of 1080%, and (5) risk free interest rates ranging from 2.56% to 2.63%.
Derivative liability income (expense) consists of:

Beaufort convertible notes
Armada convertible notes
Darling convertible notes
Tangiers convertible notes
Other convertible notes

Three Months Ended
September 30,
September 30,
2019
2018
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
$
$
(7,557)
(10,966)
(19,932)
-

Total

$

(12,463)

$

-

Nine Months ended
September 30,
September 30,
2019
2018
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
$
$
(82,945)
746,253
2,038,957
43,804
4,819,124
(71,717)
(61,402)
11,920
$

7,598,183

$

(98,938)

NOTE M – ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS
The Company’s asset retirement obligations relate to future plugging and abandonment costs relating to the 13 oil and gas wells located
in Kentucky, which were sold to Soligen Technologies, Inc. (“Soligen”) on May 10, 2018 (Please see NOTE E -OIL AND GAS
ROYALTY INTERESTS for further information). The $64,500 liability was estimated by management at December 31, 2018 based
upon a number of factors including the depth of the wells and the regional reclamation, plugging and abandonment costs. No change in
the estimate of $64,500 has been recognized from December 31, 2016 to September 30, 2019.
If and when Soligen replaces our operating bond on deposit with the Kentucky Department of Natural Resources, Soligen will then
become responsible for the asset retirement obligations relating to the 13 wells and we will write-off the then balance of the asset
retirement obligations liability.
NOTE N - CAPITAL STOCK
Preferred Stock
On September 2, 2009, the Board of Directors unanimously approved the designation of a series of preferred stock to be known as
“Series A Preferred Stock”. The designations, powers, preferences and rights, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions hereof, in
respect of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be as hereinafter described. The holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to
receive dividends nor shall dividends be paid on common stock or any other Series of Preferred Stock while Series A Preferred shares
are outstanding.
The holders of Series A Preferred Stock shall be entitled to vote on all matters submitted to a vote of the Shareholders of the Company
and shall have such number of votes equal to the number of shares of Series A Preferred Stock held on a one per one share basis. Upon
the availability of a sufficient number of authorized but unissued and unreserved shares of common stock, the holders of any Series A
Preferred Stock shall be entitled to convert such shares in to fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock at the rate of 7.8
shares of common stock for each share of Series A Preferred Stock only if the Company has failed to satisfy all financial obligations by
the designated time inclusive of the cure period. The Board of Directors of the Company, pursuant to authority granted in the Articles of
Incorporation, created a series of preferred stock designated as Series A Preferred Stock (the “Series A Preferred Stock”) with a stated
value of $0.001 per share. The number of authorized shares constituting the Series A Preferred Stock was Three Million (3,000,000)
shares. At September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, there are 1,000,000 and 1,000,000 shares issued and outstanding, respectively.
On September 2, 2009, the Board of Directors unanimously approved the designation of a series of preferred stock to be known as
“Series B Preferred Stock”. The designations, powers, preferences and rights, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions hereof, in
respect of the Series B Preferred Stock shall be as hereinafter described. The holders of Series B Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to
receive dividends. The holders of Series B Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to vote on any matters submitted to a vote of the
Shareholders of the Company. Upon the availability of a sufficient number of authorized but unissued and unreserved shares of common
stock, the holders of Series B Preferred Stock may at their election convert such shares in to fully paid and non-assessable shares of
common stock at the rate of ten shares of common stock for each share of series B Preferred Stock. The Board of Directors of the
Company, pursuant to authority granted in the Articles of Incorporation, created a series of preferred stock designated as Series B
Preferred Stock (the “Series B Preferred Stock”) with a stated value of $0.001 per share. The number of authorized shares constituting
the Series B Preferred Stock was Three Hundred Thousand (300,000) shares. At September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 there are 0
and 0 shares issued and outstanding, respectively.
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For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)
NOTE N - CAPITAL STOCK (continued)
On April 14, 2011, the Board of Directors unanimously approved the designation of a series of preferred stock to be known as “Series C
Preferred Stock”. The designations, powers, preferences and rights, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions hereof, in respect of
the Series C Preferred Stock shall be as hereinafter described. The holders of Series C Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to receive
dividends nor shall dividends be paid on common stock or any other Series Preferred Stock while Series C Preferred shares are
outstanding. The holders of Series C Preferred Stock shall be entitled to vote on all matters submitted to a vote of the Shareholders of
the Company and shall have such number of votes equal to the number of shares of Series C Preferred Stock held on a forty votes per
one share basis. Upon the availability of a sufficient number of authorized but unissued and unreserved shares of common stock, the
holders of Series C Preferred Stock may at their election convert such shares in to fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock
at the rate of forty shares of common stock for each share of series C Preferred Stock. The Board of directors of the Company, pursuant
to authority granted in the Articles of Incorporation, created a series of preferred stock designated as Series C Preferred Stock (the
“Series C Preferred Stock”) with a stated value of $0.001 per share. The number of authorized shares constituting the Series C Preferred
Stock was One Million (1,000,000) shares. At September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, there are 0 and 0 shares issued and
outstanding, respectively
On November 14, 2017, the Company’s Board of Directors unanimously approved the designation of a series of preferred stock to be
known as “Series D Preferred Stock” with a stated value of $0.001 per share. The designations, powers, preferences and rights, and the
qualifications, limitations or restrictions hereof, in respect of the Series D Preferred Stock shall be as hereinafter described. The holders
of Series D Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to receive dividends.
The holders of Series D Preferred Stock shall not be entitled to vote on any matters submitted to a vote of the Shareholders of the
Company. If at least one share of Series D Preferred Stock is issued and outstanding, then the total aggregate issued shares of Series D
Preferred Stock at any given time, regardless of their number, shall have voting rights equal to four times the sum of: i) the total number
of shares of Common Stock which are issued and outstanding at the time of voting, plus ii) the total number of shares of Series A, plus
Series B, plus Series C Preferred Stocks which are issued and outstanding at the time of voting. Upon the availability of a sufficient
number of authorized but unissued and unreserved shares of common stock, the holders of Series D Preferred Stock may at their election
convert such shares in to fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock upon the following formula:
Calculation- Each individual share of Series D Preferred Stock shall be convertible into the number of shares of
Common Stock equal to:
[5000]
divided by:
[.80 times the lowest closing price of the Company’s common stock for the immediate five-day period prior to the receipt of
the Notice of Conversion remitted to the Company by the Series D Preferred stockholder]
The number of authorized shares constituting the Series D Preferred Stock was Five Hundred Thousand (500,000) shares. At September
30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, there are 100 and 100 shares issued and outstanding, respectively.
Common Stock
Holders of the Company’s common stock are entitled to one vote for each share on all matters submitted to a stockholder vote. Holders
of common stock do not have cumulative voting rights. A vote by the holders of a majority of the Company’s outstanding voting shares
is required to effectuate certain fundamental corporate changes such as liquidation, merger or an amendment to the Company’s articles
of incorporation.
Holders of the Company’s common stock are entitled to share in all dividends that the board of directors, in its discretion, declares from
legally available funds. In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up, each outstanding share entitles its holder to participate
pro rata in all assets that remain after payment of liabilities and after providing for each class of stock, if any, having preference over the
common stock. The Company’s common stock has no pre-emptive rights, no conversion rights and there are no redemption provisions
applicable to the Company’s common stock.
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NOTE N - CAPITAL STOCK (continued)
In April 2018, the Board of Directors approved a 1:4000 reverse stock split. On December 7, 2018, the Company filed a new Issuer
Company-Related Action Notification Form with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) for the Company’s approved
1:4000 reverse stock split. On December 27, 2018, the Company was notified by FINRA that it had sufficient information to pass on the
corporate action. The Company’s common stock began trading on a post-split basis beginning on December 28, 2018 (the “Effective
date”). The trading symbol for the Company’s common stock was changed to “UNGSD” for the first twenty business days including the
effective date, thereafter the trading symbol reverted back to “UNGS.”
Common Stock and Preferred Stock Issuances
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and fiscal years ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company issued
and/or sold the following unregistered securities:
2019
On January 4, 2019, the Company issued 37,500 shares of its common stock (with a fair value of $14,959) in satisfaction of $15,000 in
accounts payable due a consultant.
On January 7, 2019, the prior owner of AMDAQ, Ltd and the prior owners of the AMDAQ tokens agreed to a reduction in the number
of common shares of AMDAQ Corp that they would retain. Of the 15,000,000 shares of AMDAQ Corp common stock issued to the
prior owner of AMDAQ, Ltd, 7,500,000 were returned to AMDAQ Corp to be retired. Of the 3,000,000 shares of AMDAQ Corp
common stock issued for the purchase of the AMDAQ tokens, 1,500,000 were returned to AMDAQ Corp to be retired.
On February 7, 2019, the Company issued 594,066 shares of its common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $642
accrued interest. The $59,418 excess of the $60,060 fair value of the 594,066 shares over the $642 liability reduction was charged to
loss on conversion of debt in the three months ended March 31, 2019.
On February 14, 2019, the Company issued 3,000,000 shares of its common stock to Valvasone Trust as payment for services rendered
on behalf of the Company. The $300,000 fair value of the 3,000,000 shares was charged to professional fees in the three months ended
March 31, 2019.
On February 14, 2019, the Company issued 1,500,000 shares of its common stock to a Valvasone Trust affiliate as payment for services
rendered on behalf of the Company. The $150,000 fair value of the 1,500,000 shares was charged to professional fees in the three
months ended March 31, 2019.
On February 20, 2019, the Company issued 536,585 shares of its common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $1,100
notes payable. The $52,559 excess of the $53,659 fair value of the 536,585 shares over the $1,100 liability reduction was charged to loss
on conversion of debt in the three months ended March 31, 2019.
On April 17, 2019, the Company issued 116,822 shares of its common stock to Wayne Anderson, the Company’s chief executive officer
and sole officer and director of the Company, in satisfaction of $10,000 director’s stock-based compensation for the first quarter of
calendar year 2019.
On August 22, 2019, the Company issued 583,523 shares of its common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $345
principal and $851 interest against an outstanding note. The $7,557 excess of the $8,753 fair value of the 583,523 shares over the $1,196
liability reduction was charged to loss on conversion of debt in the three months ended September 30, 2019.
On September 9, 2019, the Company issued 1,226,583 shares of its common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $1,300
interest against an outstanding note. The $10,966 excess of the $12,266 fair value of the 1,226,583 shares over the $1,300 liability
reduction was charged to loss on conversion of debt in the three months ended September 30, 2019.
On September 15, 2019, the Company issued 10,000,000 shares of restricted common stock for the purchase of $100,000 in inventory.
On September 25, 2019, the Company issued 6,000,000 shares of restricted common stock for the purchase of $60,000 in inventory.
2018
In December 2018, the Company issued 995,025 shares of its common stock (with a fair value of $40,000) to Wayne Anderson, the
Company’s chief executive officer and sole officer and director of the Company, in satisfaction of $40,000 accrued director’s
compensation for the calendar year 2018.
In December 2018, the Company issued 2,176,617 shares of its common stock (with a fair value of $70,000) to Wayne Anderson in
satisfaction of $70,000 accrued director’s compensation for the calendar years 2011-2017.
2017
In January 2017, the Company issued 21,875 shares of common stock to Wayne Anderson in satisfaction of $7,000 accrued officer
compensation. The $10,500 excess of the $17,500 fair value of the 21,875 shares over the $7,000 liability reduction was charged to
officer and director compensation expense.
In January 2017, the Company issued 75,000 shares of common stock to Valvasone Trust, the Company’s external financial advisor, in
satisfaction of $15,000 notes payable. The $45,000 excess of the $60,000 fair value of the 75,000 shares over the $15,000 liability
reduction was charged to professional fees expense. In addition, Valvasone Trust was issued $40,000 notes payable on July 1, 2017 for
services performed by John DellaDonna, CPA (trustee of Valvasone Trust) as the Company’s external financial advisor. Accordingly,
the professional fees incurred to Valvasone Trust and charged in the consolidated financial statement of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2017 aggregated $85,000.

In January 2017, the Company issued 41,667 shares of common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $10,000 notes
payable. The $6,667 excess of the $16,667 fair value of the 41,667 shares over the $10,000 liability reduction was charged to loss on
conversion of debt.
In January 2017, the Company issued 173,937 shares of common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $2,414 notes
payable and $11,618 accrued interest. The $125,118 excess of the $139,150 fair value of the 173,937 shares over the $14,032 liability
reduction was charged to loss on conversion of debt.
In January 2017, the Company issued 113,220 shares of common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $9,058 notes
payable. The $36,230 excess of the $45,288 fair value of the 113,220 shares over the $9,058 liability reduction was charged to loss on
conversion of debt.
In January 2017, the Company issued 52,188 shares of common stock a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $12,525 notes payable.
The $29,225 excess of the $41,750 fair value of the 52,118 shares over the $12,525 liability reduction was charged to loss on conversion
of debt.
In January 2017, the Company issued 114,583 shares of common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $27,500 notes
payable. The $64,167 excess of the $91,667 fair value of the 114,583 shares over the $27,500 liability reduction was charged to loss on
conversion of debt.
In January 2017, the Company issued 140,438 shares of common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $10,000 notes
payable and $1,235 accrued interest. The $101,115 excess of the $112,350 fair value of the 140,933 shares over the $11,235 liability
reduction was charged to loss on conversion of debt.
In February 2017, the Company issued 70,813 shares of common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $4,458 notes
payable and $1,207 accrued interest. The $22,660 excess of the $28,325 fair value of the 70,813 shares over the $5,665 liability
reduction was charged to loss on conversion of debt.
The number of common shares authorized with a par value of $0.001 per share at June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018is 750,000,000
and 750,000,000, respectively. At September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2019, there are 13,504,701 and 5,909,113 shares of common
stock issued and outstanding, respectively.
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NOTE N - CAPITAL STOCK (continued)
Preferred Stock
On December 31, 2017, the Company issued to Wayne Anderson 100 shares of the Company’s newly designated Series D Preferred
Stock in satisfaction of $500,000 accrued officer’s compensation.
Warrants and options
A summary of warrants and options activity follows:

Balance, January 1, 2017
Granted in year ended December 31, 2017
Balance December 31, 2017
Options (exercisable at $0.40 per share) granted to Wayne
Anderson in connection with April 1, 2018 Employment
Agreement
Warrants (exercisable at $0.40 per share) issued to Armada
Investment Fund, LLC in connection with sale of $30,000
Promissory Note on October 9, 2018
Warrants (exercisable at $0.40 per share) issued to Armada
Investment Fund, LLC in connection with sale of $33,000
Promissory Note on December 31, 2018
Balance, December 31, 2018
Warrants (exercisable at $0.025 per share) issued to Darling
Capital, LLC in connection with sale of $12,500 Promissory
Note dated January 9, 2019
Warrants (exercisable at $.10 per share) issued to Armada
Investment Fund, LLC in connection with sale of $11,550
Promissory Note dated February 20, 2019
Warrants (exercisable at $.10 per share) issued to Jefferson
Street Capital, LLC in connection with sale of $11,550
Promissory Note dated February 20, 2019
Warrants (exercisable at $.10 per share) issued to BHP Capital
NY Inc. in connection with sale of $11,550 Promissory Note
dated February 20, 2019
Balance March 31, 2019
Warrants (exercisable at $.10 per share) issued to BHP Capital
NY Inc. in connection with sale of $11,000 Promissory Note
dated May 2, 2019
Warrants (exercisable at $.10 per share) issued to Jefferson
Street Capital, LLC in connection with sale of $11,000
Promissory Note dated May 2, 2019
Warrants (exercisable at $.075 per share) issued to Armada
Investment Fund, LLC in connection with sale of $16,500
Promissory Note dated June 5, 2019
Balance, June 30, 2019
Warrants (exercisable at $.075 per share) issued to Armada
Investment Fund, LLC in connection with sale of $16,500
Promissory Note dated July 2, 2019
Warrants (exercisable at $.08 per share) issued to Armada
Investment Fund, LLC in connection with sale of $15,400
Promissory Note dated July24, 2019
Warrants (exercisable at $.08 per share) issued to BHP Capital
NY Inc in connection with sale of $15,400 Promissory Note
dated July24, 2019
Warrants (exercisable at $.08 per share) issued to Fourth Man,
LLC in connection with sale of $15,400 Promissory Note
dated July24, 2019
Balance, September 30, 2019

Options
25,000
25,000

Shares Equivalent
Warrants
-

25,000

-

25,000

-

62,500

62,500

50,000

82,500
145,000

82,500
195,000

-

3,000,000

3,000,000

-

26,250

26,250

-

26,250

26,250

50,000

26,250
3,223,750

26,250
3,273,350

-

50,000

50,000

-

50,000

50,000

50,000

220,000
3,543,750

220,000
3,593,750

-

220,000

220,000

-

256,667

256,667

-

256,667

256,667

50,000

256,667
4,533,751

256,667
4,583,751

Total
25,000
25,000

As of September 30, 2019, the Company has fifteen warrants and options issued and outstanding granting the holders the right to
purchase up to a total of 4,583,751 shares of its common stock.
The following table summarizes information about warrants outstanding as of September 30, 2019:
Number Outstanding
At September 30, 2019
25,000
25,000
62,500
82,500
3,000,000
78,750
100,000

Exercise Price
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Expiration Date
0.80
0.40
0.40
0.40
0.025
0.10
0.10

April 1, 2020
April 1, 2023
October 9, 2023
December 31, 2023
January 9, 2024
February 20, 2024
May 2, 2024

440,000
770,001
4,583,751

$
$

0.075
0.08
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NOTE O - INCOME TAXES
The provision for (benefit from) income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory United States federal income
tax rate for the periods presented to income (loss) before income taxes. The income tax rate was 21% for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2019 and 2018. The sources of the difference are as follows:

Expected tax
Non-deductible stock-based compensation
Non-deductible loss on conversion of notes payable
and accrued interest
Non-deductible loss (nontaxable income) from
derivative liability
Non-deductible amortization of debt discounts
Increase (decrease) in Valuation allowance
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes

Three Months Ended
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
September 30,
September 30,
September 30,
2019
2018
2019
2018
(Unaudited)
Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
(Unaudited)
$
(52,924) $
(36,637) $
1,266,661 $
(44,816)
165,354
-

$

3,890

-

2,617
11,915
34,502
-

35,303
-

$

27,404

$

(1,595,618)
25,190
111,009
- $

20,777
2,568
21,471
-

All tax years remain subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service.
Significant components of the Company’s deferred income tax are as follows:
September 30, 2019
December 31, 2018
(Unaudited)
$
101,107 $
168,910
2,257,851
2,062,344
(2,358,958)
(2,231,254)
$
- $
-

Unpaid accrued officer and director compensation
Net operating loss carry-forwards
Valuation allowance
Net non-current deferred tax asset

Based on management’s present assessment, the Company has not yet determined it to be more likely than not that a deferred tax asset
of $2,231,254 attributable to the future utilization of the $804,335 timing difference relating to unpaid officer and director compensation
and the $9,820,686 net operating loss carryforward as of December 31, 2018 will be realized. Accordingly, the Company has provided a
100% allowance against the deferred tax asset in the financial statements at December 31, 2018. The Company will continue to review
this valuation allowance and make adjustments as appropriate. $10,072,705 of the net operating loss carryforward expires in varying
amounts from year 2026 to year 2037.
Current tax laws limit the amount of loss available to be offset against future taxable income when a substantial change in ownership
occurs. Therefore, the amount available to offset future taxable income may be limited.
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NOTE P - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Occupancy
On August 28, 2019, the Company entered into a lease to rent office space located at 501 1st Ave N, Suite 901, St. Petersburg, FL
33701. The lease is for a term of one year and has a monthly rental rate of $480. The Company’s future rental obligation at September
30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 is $5,280 and $3,760, respectively.
Employment and Director Agreements
On April 1, 2018, the Company executed an employment agreement with Wayne Anderson to serve in the role as President, Treasurer,
and Secretary of the Company upon the terms and provisions and, subject to the conditions set forth in the Agreement, for a term of
three (3) years, commencing on April 1, 2018 and terminating on March 31, 2021, unless earlier terminated as provided in the
Agreement. The Agreement included options to Mr. Anderson to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock at a price of $0.40 per share.
The agreement provides for Mr. Anderson to receive an annual compensation of $270,000 for each of the three years of the Agreement.
Please see NOTE H – ACCRUED OFFICER AND DIRECTOR COMPENSATION for further information.
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NOTE P - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)
On January 2, 2018, the Company executed a new Board of Directors Service Agreement with Wayne Anderson. Under the terms of the
Agreement, commencing January 2, 2018 the Company is to pay Mr. Anderson $10,000 per quarter for which Mr. Anderson serves on
the Board of Directors. In addition to cash compensation, the Company is to issue Mr. Anderson the equivalent of $10,000 of the
Company’s common stock on the last calendar day of each quarter. The calculation for the number of shares to be issued to Mr.
Anderson shall be as follows: $10,000/(Closing stock price on the last trading day of each quarter x .80). Please see NOTE I –
ACCRUED OFFICER AND DIRECTOR COMPENSATION for further information.
On April 1, 2015, the Company executed an employment agreement with Wayne Anderson to serve in the role as President, Treasurer,
and Secretary of the Company upon the terms and provisions and, subject to the conditions set forth in the Agreement, for a term of
three (3) years, commencing on April 1, 2015, and terminating on March 31, 2018, unless earlier terminated as provided in the
Agreement. The Agreement included options to Mr. Anderson to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock at a price of $0.40 per share.
Mr. Anderson was accrued an annual compensation of $221,767 for each of the three years of the Agreement.
On January 5, 2011, the Company executed a Board of Directors Service Agreement with Wayne Anderson. Under the terms of the
Agreement, commencing January 5, 2011 the Company was to pay Mr. Anderson the equivalent of $2,500 per quarter in common stock
for which Mr. Anderson served on the Board of Directors. For the years ended December 31, 2011 to December 31, 2017, the Company
expensed $10,000 per year, which was satisfied through the issuance of the Company’s common stock on December 31, 2018. Please
see NOTE I – ACCRUED OFFICER AND DIRECTOR COMPENSATION for further information.
Legal
From time to time, the Company is subject to litigation from service providers and others. As of September 30, 2019 and December 31,
2018, there are two outstanding judgments against the Company totaling $6,658 and $6,658, respectively (which is included in accounts
payable). As of September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 and at the date of issuance of these financial statements, there is no
outstanding litigation against the Company.
Key Man life insurance
On July 17, 2019, the Company applied for a 10-year term Key Man life insurance policy for its sole officer and director, Jimmy Wayne
Anderson, in the amount of $500,000. The policy was approved in August 2019 with an effective start date of September 1, 2019. The
monthly cost to the company is $59.38.
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NOTE Q - GOING CONCERN UNCERTAINITY
Under ASC 205-40, we have the responsibility to evaluate whether conditions and/or events raise substantial doubt about our ability to
meet our future financial obligations as they become due within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued. As
required by this standard, our evaluation shall initially not take into consideration the potential mitigating effects of our plans that have
not been fully implemented as of the date the financial statements are issued.
In performing the first step of this assessment, we concluded that the following conditions raise substantial doubt about our ability to
meet our financial obligations as they become due. We have a history of net losses: As of September 30, 2019, we had an accumulated
deficit of $14,440,879. For the nine months ended September 30, 2019, we used cash from operating activities of $153,909. We expect
to continue to incur negative cash flows until such time as our operating segments generate sufficient cash inflows to finance our
operations and debt service requirements.
In performing the second step of this assessment, we are required to evaluate whether our plans to mitigate the conditions above
alleviate the substantial doubt about our ability to meet our obligations as they become due within one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued. Our future plans include securing additional funding sources that may include establishing corporate
partnerships, establishing licensing revenue agreements, issuing additional convertible debentures and issuing public or private equity
securities, including selling common stock through an at-the-market facility (ATM).
There is no assurance that sufficient funds required during the next year or thereafter will be generated from operations or that funds will
be available through external sources. The lack of additional capital resulting from the inability to generate cash flow from operations or
to raise capital from external sources would force the Company to substantially curtail or cease operations and would, therefore, have a
material effect on the business. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that any such required funds, if available, will be available on
attractive terms or they will not have a significant dilutive effect on the Company’s existing shareholders. We have therefore concluded
there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern through August 2020.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis, which contemplates the realization
of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and
classification of liabilities that may result from our failure to continue as a going concern.
NOTE R - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On October 10, 2019, the Company’s Board of Directors elected to form a new subsidiary, 5496 NRMF, LLC.
On October 12, 2019, the Company, through its wholly owned subsidiary 5496 NRMF, LLC, entered into a Commercial Sales Contract
for the purchase of a 1.1-acre tract of land in Santa Rosa County, Florida for the purchase price of $17,500. The transaction closed on
November 1, 2019.
On October 16, 2019, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) with each of BHP Capital NY Inc.
and Fourth Man, LLC (collectively, the “Investors”) wherein the Company issued each of the Investors a Convertible Promissory Note
(the “Notes”) in the amount of $13,750 for a total of $27,500. The Notes have a term of one (1) year and are due on October 16, 2020
and bear interest at 8% annually. The Convertible Note is convertible, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time before
maturity (October 16, 2020) at the option of the holder. The conversion price for the principal and interest in connection with voluntary
conversions by the Holder shall be 60% multiplied by the Market Price (as defined herein)(representing a discount rate of 40%), subject
to adjustment as described herein (“Conversion Price”). Market Price” means the lowest one (1) Trading Prices (as defined below) for
the Common Stock during the twenty (20) Trading Day period ending on the last complete Trading Day prior to the Conversion Date.
“Trading Prices” means, for any security as of any date, the lowest traded price on the Over-the Counter Pink Marketplace, OTCQB. As
part and parcel of the foregoing transactions, each of the Investors was issued a warrant granting the holder the right to purchase up to
761,958 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.024 for a term of 5-years. The transactions closed on October
16, 2019.
On October 28, 2019, the Company issued 1,000,000 shares of common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $3,700
principal and $500 in fees. The $5,800 excess of the $10,000 fair value of the 1,000,000 shares over the $4,200 liability reduction was
charged to loss on conversion of debt at that date.
On October 28, 2019, the Company issued 1,248,390 shares of common stock to a warrant holder upon the partial exercise of a warrant
issued on February 18, 2019.
On October 30, 2019, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Armada Investment Fund,
LLC (the “Investor”) wherein the Company issued the Investor a Convertible Promissory Note (the “Note”) in the amount of $25,300.
The Note has a term of one (1) year, is due on October 30, 2020 and bears interest at 8% annually. The Note is convertible, in whole or
in part, at any time and from time to time before maturity (October 30, 2020) at the option of the holder. The conversion price for the
principal and interest in connection with voluntary conversions by the Holder shall be 60% multiplied by the Market Price (as defined
herein)(representing a discount rate of 40%), subject to adjustment as described herein (“Conversion Price”). Market Price” means the
lowest one (1) Trading Prices (as defined below) for the Common Stock during the twenty (20) Trading Day period ending on the last
complete Trading Day prior to the Conversion Date. “Trading Prices” means, for any security as of any date, the lowest traded price on
the Over-the Counter Pink Marketplace, OTCQB. As part and parcel of the foregoing transaction, the Investor was issued a warrant
granting the holder the right to purchase up to 1,402,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.024 for a
term of 5-years. The transaction closed on October 30, 2019.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS
Current Business
Sylios Corp (f/k/a US Natural Gas Corp) (“Sylios”, the “Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our”) was organized as a Florida Corporation on
March 28, 2008 under the name of Adventure Energy, Inc.
Sylios Corp is a holding corporation, which through its subsidiaries, has operations engaged in the exploration and development of oil
and natural gas properties, purchase of royalty and working interest units in producing properties (oil and natural gas) and alternative
land development projects. The Company maintains equity investments in our two spin-offs (The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc.
(“GCAN”) and AMDAQ Corp (“AMDAQ”)) that focus on the development and commercialization of cannabinoid delivery systems
and blockchain technology, respectively. As of the date of this filing, the Company maintains a 1.81% ownership of the issued and
outstanding common shares of GCAN and a 9.84% ownership of the issued and outstanding common shares of AMDAQ.
Our operations are currently divided amongst four wholly owned subsidiaries, US Natural Gas Corp KY (“KY”), US Natural Gas Corp
WV (“WV”) (formerly Wilon Resources, Inc.), E 3 Petroleum Corp (“E3”) and 1720 RCMG, LLC (“RCMG”). During the fiscal year
ended 2017, the Company spun-off its two formerly owned subsidiaries, The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc. and AMDAQ Corp. In
addition, in June 2017 the Company sold its wholly owned subsidiary Bud Bank, Inc.
Events during the three months ended September 30, 2019:
On September 21, 2019, the Company entered into an Inventory Purchase Agreement with Wanshan Engineering Services, LLC for the
purchase of surplus inventory. The Company purchased 1,000 Ampt wireless earbuds for the purchase price of $60,000 via the issuance
of 6,000,000 shares of restricted common stock. The Closing of the transaction occurred on September 25, 2019.
On September 12, 2019, the Company entered into an Inventory Purchase Agreement with Wanshan Engineering Services, LLC for the
purchase of surplus inventory. The Company purchased 30,000 Squeeze Soap Filled Scrubbers for the purchase price of $100,000 via
the issuance of 10,000,000 shares of restricted common stock. The Closing of the transaction occurred on September 15, 2019.
The Company’s plans are to retain a third-party consultant to develop an ecommerce website for each product and to initiate sales of
each product within the fourth quarter of 2019. The products are currently stored in a warehouse in Largo, FL.
On September 5, 2019, the Company filed a Form 8-A12G with the Securities and Exchange Commission to become a mandatory filer
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
On August 22, 2019, the Company entered into a Consulting Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Global Technologies, Ltd (“Global”)
for acquisition related services. Global is a publicly traded company that trades under the symbol “GTLL.” The Company’s President,
Mr. Anderson, serves as the sole officer and director of GTLL. As per the terms of the Agreement, the Company was compensated 10
shares of Global’s Series L Preferred Stock.
Subsidiaries:
US Natural Gas Corp WV:
US Natural Gas Corp WV (“WV”) (formerly Wilon Resources, Inc.) is a wholly owned subsidiary that was formed in Tennessee and
acquired in June 2010.
WV’s operations were based in Wayne County, West Virginia and primarily concentrated on the production of commercially viable
natural gas. Through WV, the Company seeks to identify and acquire “non-operator” royalty or working interest participations in natural
gas wells that are in production. As of the date of this filing, the Company does not own any real property, royalty or working interest
participations in WV.
US Natural Gas Corp KY:
US Natural Gas Corp KY (“KY”) is a wholly owned subsidiary formed in the State of Florida on June 8, 2010. KY’s operations
concentrate on oil producing activities mainly in South-Central Kentucky.
Our business strategy is to economically increase reserves, production, and the sale of natural gas and oil from existing and acquired
properties in the Appalachian Basin and elsewhere, in order to maximize shareholders’ return over the long term. Our strategic location
in Kentucky enables us to actively pursue the acquisition and development of producing properties in that area that will enhance our
revenue base without proportional increases in overhead costs.
We expect to generate long-term reserve and production growth through drilling activities and further acquisitions. We believe that our
management’s experience and expertise will enable us to identify, evaluate, and develop natural gas projects.
We have acquired and intend to acquire additional producing oil and gas property rights where we believe significant additional value
can be created. Our Management is primarily interested in developmental properties where some combination of these factors exist: (1)
opportunities for long production life with stable production levels; (2) geological formations with multiple producing horizons; (3)
substantial exploitation potential; and (4) relatively low capital investment production costs.
The Company currently holds the following royalties in certain wells in the State of Kentucky and Tennessee. The Company is not
required to cover the wells on its blanket bond nor is it required to expend any future capital on maintenance.
ROYALTIES HELD (as NON-OPERATOR)
COUNTY
%
WELL NAME
(STATE)
ROYALTY
GREEN 7-3-TW
FENTRESS (TN)
15
JAMES PHARIS K-1
CUMBERLAND (KY)
5
Wells sold in the Soligen Technologies, Inc. transaction
dated May 10, 2018
Multiple within KY
30
(b) - Status

STATUS
(b)
SI
SI

PRODUCT
(c)
O
O

SI

O

i) PR - In Production
ii) PL - Plugged
iii) SI - Shut-In
(c) - Product
i) O - Oil production
ii) NG - Natural Gas production
iii) O/NG - Both Oil & Natural Gas production
The GREEN and JAMES PHARIS wells are covered under the bond of Keller Energy, LLC (“Keller”). Keller is currently re-entering
each of the wells to replace downhole pumping parts, flowlines and certain tank batteries. The Company anticipates that each of the
wells will be placed into production during the fourth quarter of 2019.
The wells sold to Soligen Technologies, Inc. (“Soligen”) are still under the bond of E 3 Petroleum Corp, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Soligen’s plan is to re-enter each well to determine what downhole work is needed to place the wells back into production
and to stimulate increased production. We anticipate that 3-4 of the wells will be re-entered, re-worked and placed into production by
the end of the fourth calendar quarter of 2019. Please see NOTE E - OIL AND GAS ROYALTY INTERESTS and NOTE F – OIL
AND GAS OPERATING BONDS for further information.
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On May 10, 2018, the Company’s subsidiary, US Natural Gas Corp KY (“KY”), entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with
Soligen Technologies, Inc. (“SGTN”) for the sale of 13 previously producing crude and natural gas wells, approximately 1700 acres of
leaseholds, tank batteries and gathering systems (collectively the “assets”) all located in multiple counties throughout the State of
Kentucky. Under the terms of the Agreement, SGTN acquired the assets for consideration of One Hundred Forty Thousand and no/100
Dollars ($140,000). At Closing, SGTN assigned KY a royalty for payment out of production, whereby KY shall receive thirty percent
(30%) of the gross proceeds of production from the acquired assets. In addition, KY shall receive ten percent (10%) of the monthly
gross proceeds of production from any new drilled wells on the acquired leases. KY shall receive payments from production until such
time that KY has received a total of One Hundred Forty Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($140,000). Please see NOTE E - OIL AND
GAS ROYALTY INTERESTS for further information.
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E 3 Petroleum Corp:
E 3 Petroleum Corp (“E3”) is a wholly owned subsidiary formed in the State of Florida on February 8, 2010. E3’s sole business activity
is to act as the bonding entity for the Company’s oil and natural gas wells. As a bonding entity, E3 places funds with the Kentucky
Department of Natural Resources to cover the reclamation costs in the event the wells under its bond are deemed abandoned by the State
of Kentucky. Please see NOTE F – OIL AND GAS OPERATING BONDS for further information.
1720 RCMG, LLC:
1720 RCMG, LLC (“1720”) is a wholly owned subsidiary formed in the State of Florida on July 24, 2019. 1720’s business activity will
be to manage the Company’s development of its commercial property located in Macon, GA.
On October 6, 2018, the Company entered into a Commercial Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement with the Company’s President
for the purchase of a .92 acre of land located in Bibb County, GA. The purchase price for the land was $40,000. On this same date, the
Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with its President for the purchase of all architectural and engineering plans for the
development of a storage facility to be constructed on the .92 acre of land. The purchase price for these assets was $35,000.
On October 6, 2018, the Company issued its President a Secured Note in the amount of $75,000. The Note has a term of one year and
bears interest at 3%. The Company’s first payment in the amount of $15,000 was due within 90 days of an effective reverse stock split.
As of the date of issuance of these Financial statements, except for a $5,000 payment made by the Company to the Company’s president
on November 12, 2018, the Company has not made any payment against the Note.
The Company’s plans are to develop a self-storage facility containing a mix of climate-controlled and exterior units along with parking
facilities for boats and recreational vehicles. The Company’s current design will contain 194 units and 15 boat/RV parking spaces. The
current make-up of the units is 130 climate-controlled units and 64 exterior units. The final number and make-up of the units will be
determined after the Company receives comments from the planning and zoning commission of Bibb County. The Company anticipates
that the design and engineering reports will be finalized on or before August 30, 2019, which will then be submitted to the planning and
zoning commission for approval or revision. Land prep will begin in early September to be followed by pouring of the concrete
foundation and ultimate construction of the self-storage facility.
There are no guarantees that the Company will be able to secure financing to construct the facility.
Surplus Inventory:
On September 12, 2019, the Company entered into an Inventory Purchase Agreement with Wanshan Engineering Services, LLC for the
purchase of surplus inventory. The Company purchased 30,000 Squeeze Soap Filled Scrubbers for the purchase price of $100,000 via
the issuance of 10,000,000 shares of restricted common stock. The Closing of the transaction occurred on September 15, 2019.
On September 21, 2019, the Company entered into an Inventory Purchase Agreement with Wanshan Engineering Services, LLC for the
purchase of surplus inventory. The Company purchased 1,000 Ampt wireless earbuds for the purchase price of $60,000 via the issuance
of 6,000,000 shares of restricted common stock. The Closing of the transaction occurred on September 25, 2019.
The Company’s plans are to retain a third-party consultant to develop an ecommerce website for each product and to initiate sales of
each product within the fourth quarter of 2019. The products are currently stored in a warehouse in Largo, FL.
Squeezee Soap Filled Scrubbers:
The innovative Squeezee sponge has concentrated dishwashing liquid inside the sponge with
grease cutting formula and Aloe for soft hands. The Squeezee scrubber makes dishwashing
both more convenient and economical. No more need for purchasing separate detergents. The
soft antibacterial non-scratch double-sided scrubber has a unique shape allowing to reach those
hard to get to places for multi-purpose use.
Ampt Wireless Bluetooth Earbuds:
Pair the AMPT stereo Bluetooth earphones with each other for a stereo experience. In single
earbud mode, each wireless headset can connect with two Bluetooth source devices like your
iPhone or Android phone, iPad, tablet, or laptop simultaneously. If you are streaming music
from your iPad, and receive an incoming call on your iPhone, the wireless earphones will
recognize this and allow you to take the call seamlessly without the hassle of repairing. Pairing
2 cordless earbuds wirelessly like Apple AirPods, making it the smallest stereo Bluetooth
headset on the market. Siri is just a touch away via the main button on either of the cordless
earbuds. You never have to take your smartphone out of your pocket, giving you a genuine
hands-free, wireless stereo experience.
Equity holdings in which we hold >5% ownership of the issued and outstanding common stock
AMDAQ Corp:
AMDAQ Corp (“AMDAQ”) (formerly E 2 Investments, LLC) was a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company until October 2, 2017,
payment date for the spin-off. At December 31, 2018, the Company held 2,956,650 shares of common stock of AMDAQ. As of the date
of this filing, the Company holds 2,956,650 (9.84% ownership of the issued and outstanding common shares) shares of common stock
of AMDAQ.
6

The Company’s business model from inception through August 31, 2017 concentrated on alternative investments including but not
limited to:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Buying and selling of domestic equities
Purchase of third-party debt issued by publicly traded entities
Purchase of mineral rights
Direct Stock Purchase participation with other publicly traded entities
Consulting capacity
Purchase of Royalty or Working Interests in Crude and Natural Gas Producing wells

On September 1, 2017, the Company acquired AMDAQ Ltd, a corporation formed under the Registrar of Companies for England and
Wales, in order to diversify its business model to enter into the rapidly expanding sectors of blockchain technology.
AMDAQ’s multi-faceted business model will allow the company to take advantage of the significant emerging opportunities being
developed utilizing blockchain technology. The opportunities we have identified to date cross many industries, which will help
minimize our exposure to any single sector. We have associated ourselves with leading experts in the field of blockchain technologies,
allowing for a broad overview of exciting applications being developed, which include direct investments in blockchain applications, the
AMDAQ marketplace and our TIKR division.
The AMDAQ marketplace will provide the infrastructure for the administration of pre-existing and potential ownership of both tangible
and intangible assets and its adaptable structural utility can be used in parallel to any equity fundraising mechanism.
AMDAQ will allow both the documented ownership and transfer of assets for which there is no established registration process and the
sub-division of ownership interests in otherwise registered assets where transfer processes may be expensive/cumbersome and/or trigger
taxes and other expenses.
Using the AMDAQ platform, assets can be titled in a Smart Contract with ownership interests evidenced by ownership of an associated
Ethereum token. The Smart Contract will provide not only the rules as to transfer of ownership but also automated voting mechanisms
for each specific situation that requires governance decisions.
For further information on the Company’s operations and filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, please visit its
corporate website at www.amdaq.com and the website of its subsidiary, AMDAQ, Ltd., at www.amdaq.market. Please see NOTE G INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO SPUN-OFF FORMER SUBSIDIARIES for further information.
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Former Subsidiaries:
Bud Bank, LLC:
On April 21, 2017, the Company entered into a definitive Asset Acquisition Agreement (the “Agreement”) with The Greater Cannabis
Company, Inc. (“GCC”), whereby GCC acquired the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary Bud Bank, Inc. (“Bud Bank”). Under the
Agreement, GCC is obligated to pay the Company a royalty of 10% of net sales proceeds generated by Bud Bank through its operations
up to a total of $50,000 and thereafter for perpetuity pay a royalty of 3% of net sales proceeds generated by Bud Bank through its
operations. The transaction closed on June 21, 2017 concurrent with the Company’s filings with the State of Florida. The transaction
closed on June 20, 2017.
SLMI Options, LLC:
SLMI Options, LLC (“SLMI”) was a wholly owned subsidiary that was acquired through a Lender acquisition Agreement with SLMI
Holdings, LLC in September 2009. The sole purpose of the acquisition of SLMI was to hold three commercial notes issued by Wilon
Resources, Inc., (formerly “Wilon Resources of Tennessee, Inc.”) in the years 2005 through 2007. There has been no additional
operational activity of SLMI. SLMI was administratively dissolved in 2015.
Licenses:
We held a Gathering Line Operators License in the state of Kentucky during the time we acted as the operator of our wells. As we no
longer act in the capacity as the “Operator” of any shut-in/producing wells, the Company is no longer required to retain its operator
license in the State of Kentucky. In the event that we would elect to act as the Operator of our wells, we would be required to submit an
application to retain a license.
Patents/Trademarks:
None.
Research & Development
For the fiscal years 2017 and 2018, the majority of our development funds were utilized in the pre-development and development phases
of The Greater Cannabis Company’s online store (GCC Superstore), legal, accounting and other costs associated with the spin-off of
The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc. We anticipate that our development costs will be approximately $200,000 in 2019. The majority of
the costs will be aimed at the development of AMDAQ Corp and its subsidiaries, legal, accounting and filings related to a “going
public” event for AMDAQ Corp. The Company will receive unsecured promissory notes for the funds advanced to AMDAQ Corp.
Compliance Expenses
Our company incurs annual expenses to comply with state and federal licensing requirements. We estimate these costs to be under
$2,000 per year. In the event we elect to drill any new wells in Kentucky, we anticipate annual expenditures of approximately $25,000
per well related to environmental costs including water drainage and land development. It is difficult to estimate these environmental
expenses while we are still a development stage company as they are largely dependent on many factors for each drilled well. See
“Government Regulation” and “Environmental Regulation” below.
Natural Gas
The Henry Hub natural gas spot price averaged $3.13/million British thermal units (MMBtu) in January 2019, down 91 cents/MMBtu
from December 2018. Despite a cold snap in late January, average temperatures for the month were milder than normal in much of the
country, which contributed to lower prices. EIA expects strong growth in U.S. natural gas production to put downward pressure on
prices in 2019. EIA expects Henry Hub natural gas spot prices to average $2.83/MMBtu in 2019, down 32 cents/MMBtu from the 2018
average. NYMEX futures and options contract values for May 2019 delivery traded during the five-day period ending February 7, 2019,
suggest a range of $2.15/MMBtu to $3.30/MMBtu encompasses the market expectation for May 2019 Henry Hub natural gas prices at
the 95% confidence level.
EIA forecasts that dry natural gas production will average 90.2 billion cubic feet per day (Bcf/d) in 2019, up 6.9 Bcf/d from 2018. EIA
expects natural gas production will continue to rise in 2020 to an average of 92.1 Bcf/d.
EIA expects the share of U.S. total utility-scale electricity generation from natural gas-fired power plants to rise from 35% in 2018 to
36% in 2019 and to 37% in 2020. EIA forecasts that the electricity generation share from coal will average 26% in 2019 and 24% in
2020, down from 28% in 2018. The nuclear share of generation was 19% in 2018 and EIA forecasts that it will stay near that level in
2019 and in 2020. The generation share of hydropower is forecast to average slightly less than 7% of total generation in 2019 and 2020,
similar to last year. Wind, solar, and other nonhydropower renewables together provided about 10% of electricity generation in 2018.
EIA expects them to provide 11% in 2019 and 13% in 2019.

1.

https://www.eia.gov/outlooks/steo/report/natgas.php
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Crude
Brent crude oil spot prices averaged $59 per barrel (b) in January 2019, up $2/b from December 2018 but $10/b lower than the average
in January of last year. EIA forecasts Brent spot prices will average $61/b in 2019 and $62/b in 2020, compared with an average of
$71/b in 2018. EIA expects that West Texas Intermediate (WTI) crude oil prices will average $8/b lower than Brent prices in the first
quarter of 2019 before the discount gradually falls to $4/b in the fourth quarter of 2019 and through 2020.
EIA estimates that U.S. crude oil production averaged 12.0 million barrels per day (b/d) in January, up 90,000 b/d from December. EIA
forecasts U.S. crude oil production to average 12.4 million b/d in 2019 and 13.2 million b/d in 2020, with most of the growth coming
from the Permian region of Texas and New Mexico.
Global liquid fuels inventories grew by an estimated 0.5 million b/d in 2018, and EIA expects they will grow by 0.4 million b/d in 2019
and by 0.6 million b/d in 2020.
U.S. crude oil and petroleum product net imports are estimated to have fallen from an average of 3.8 million b/d in 2017 to an average
of 2.4 million b/d in 2018. EIA forecasts that net imports will continue to fall to an average of 0.9 million b/d in 2019 and to an average
net export level of 0.3 million b/d in 2020. In the fourth quarter of 2020, EIA forecasts the United States will be a net exporter of crude
oil and petroleum products by about 1.1 million b/d.
1.

https://www.eia.gov/outlooks/steo/

Labor and Other Supplies
Oil and Natural Gas Operations: We contract all labor for the development of leasehold acreage in preparation for drilling, as well as the
drilling and completion crews. Our contract labor monitors the wells on a daily basis, replaces the completion components as needed,
makes repairs to the gathering system, and any other day-to-day maintenance when our wells are in production.
Other Operational Activities: We contract all labor for website development, accounting, legal and daily activities outside of
management.
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Principal Products or Services and Markets
The principal markets for the Company’s crude oil are local refining companies. The principal markets for the Company’s natural gas
production are local utilities, private industry end-users, and gas marketing companies.
When the wells we maintain a royalty interest in are in production, the crude oil produced is sold at or near the wells to Sunoco, Inc. or
Barrett Oil Purchasing, Inc. The Company may sell some or all of its production to one or more additional refineries in order to
maximize revenues as purchases prices offered by the refineries fluctuate from time to time. At present, all of the wells we maintain an
interest are shut-in as contract labor initiates the re-entry of each to place them back into production
Drilling Equipment
The Company obtains drilling services as required from time to time from various companies as available and various drilling
contractors in Kentucky. The Company does not own any of its own drilling equipment nor maintain a storage facility in Kentucky.
Distribution Methods of Products or Services
Crude oil is normally delivered to refineries in Kentucky by tank truck and natural gas is distributed and transported by pipeline.
Commodity Price Volatility
Oil and natural gas prices are volatile and subject to a number of external factors. Prices are cyclical and fluctuate as a result of shifts in
the balance between supply and demand for oil and natural gas, world and North American market forces, conflicts in Middle Eastern
countries, inventory and storage levels, OPEC policy, weather patterns and other factors. OPEC supply curtailment, tensions in the
Middle East, increased demand in China and low North American crude stocks have kept crude oil prices high. Natural gas prices are
greatly influenced by market forces in North America since the primary source of supply is contained within the continent.
Market forces include the industry’s ability to find new production and reserves to offset declining production, economic factors
influencing industrial demand, weather patterns affecting heating demand and the price of oil for fuel switching.
Seasonality
The exploration for oil and natural gas reserves depends on access to areas where operations are to be conducted. Seasonal weather
variations, including freeze-up and break-up affect access in certain circumstances. According to the American Petroleum Institute,
more than 60 million U.S. households use natural gas for water heating, space heating, or cooking. In total, natural gas accounts for
more than 50 percent of the fuel used to heat U.S. homes. Residential and commercial heating demand for natural gas is highly weathersensitive, making weather the biggest driver of natural gas demand in the short term. As a result, natural gas demand is highly
“seasonal” in nature, with significant “peaks” in the winter heating season.
Seasonality and the natural gas in storage also play a prominent role in natural gas prices. Because natural gas consumption is seasonal,
but production is not, natural gas inventories are built during the summer for use in the winter. This seasonality leads to higher winter
prices and lower summer prices. In addition, inventories above the seasonal average depress prices, and inventories below the seasonal
average boost prices.
Governmental Regulation
Operations are or will be subject to various types of regulation at the federal, state and local levels. Such regulation includes requiring
permits for the drilling of wells; maintaining bonding requirements in order to drill or operate wells; implementing spill prevention
plans; submitting notification and receiving permits relating to the presence, use and release of certain materials incidental to oil and gas
operations; and regulating the location of wells, the method of drilling and casing wells, the use, transportation, storage and disposal of
fluids and materials used in connection with drilling and production activities, surface usage and the restoration of properties upon
which wells have been drilled, the plugging and abandoning of wells and the transporting of production.
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Operations are or will also be subject to various conservation matters, including the regulation of the size of drilling and spacing units or
proration units, the number of wells which may be drilled in a unit, and the unitization or pooling of oil and gas properties.
In this regard, some states allow the forced pooling or integration of tracts to facilitate exploration while other states rely on voluntary
pooling of lands and leases, which may make it more difficult to develop oil and gas properties. In addition, state conservation laws
establish maximum rates of production from oil and gas wells, generally limit the venting or flaring of gas, and impose certain
requirements regarding the ratable purchase of production. The effect of these regulations is to limit the amounts of oil and gas we may
be able to produce from the wells and to limit the number of wells or the locations at which we may be able to drill.
Business is affected by numerous laws and regulations, including energy, environmental, conservation, tax and other laws and
regulations relating to the oil and gas industry. We plan to develop internal procedures and policies to ensure that operations are
conducted in full and substantial environmental regulatory compliance.
Failure to comply with any laws and regulations may result in the assessment of administrative, civil and criminal penalties, the
imposition of injunctive relief or both. Moreover, changes in any of these laws and regulations could have a material adverse effect on
business. In view of the many uncertainties with respect to current and future laws and regulations, including their applicability to us, we
cannot predict the overall effect of such laws and regulations on future operations.
We believe that our operations comply in all material respects with applicable laws and regulations and that the existence and
enforcement of such laws and regulations have no more restrictive an effect on operations than on other similar companies in the energy
industry. We do not anticipate any material capital expenditures to comply with federal and state environmental requirements.
Environmental Regulation
Oil and Natural Gas Industry
The oil and gas industry is extensively regulated by federal, state and local authorities. The scope and applicability of legislation is
constantly monitored for change and expansion. Numerous agencies, both federal and state, have issued rules and regulations binding on
the oil and gas industry and its individual members, some of which carry substantial penalties for noncompliance. To date, these
mandates have had no material effect on our capital expenditures, earnings or competitive position.
Legislation and implementing regulations adopted or proposed to be adopted by the Environmental Protection Agency and by
comparable state agencies, directly and indirectly, affect our operations. We are required to operate in compliance with certain air
quality standards, water pollution limitations, solid waste regulations and other controls related to the discharging of materials into, and
otherwise protecting the environment. These regulations also relate to the rights of adjoining property owners and to the drilling and
production operations and activities in connection with the storage and transportation of natural gas and oil.
We may be required to prepare and present to federal, state or local authority’s data pertaining to the effect or impact that any proposed
operations may have upon the environment. Requirements imposed by such authorities could be costly, time-consuming and could delay
continuation of production or exploration activities. Further, the cooperation of other persons or entities may be required for us to
comply with all environmental regulations. It is conceivable that future legislation or regulations may significantly increase
environmental protection requirements and, as a consequence, our activities may be more closely regulated which could significantly
increase operating costs. However, management is unable to predict the cost of future compliance with environmental legislation. As of
the date hereof, management believes that we are in compliance with all present environmental regulations. Further, we believe that our
oil and gas explorations do not pose a threat of introducing hazardous substances into the environment. If such event should occur, we
could be liable under certain environmental protection statutes and laws.
We presently do not carry insurance for environmental liability. Our exploration and development operations are subject to various types
of regulation at the federal, state and local levels. Such regulation includes the requirement of permits for the drilling of wells, the
regulation of the location and density of wells, limitations on the methods of casing wells, requirements for surface use and restoration
of properties upon which wells are drilled and governing the abandonment and plugging of wells. Exploration and production are also
subject to property rights and other laws governing the correlative rights of surface and subsurface owners.
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We are subject to the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act, as well as other state and local labor laws, rules and
regulations. The cost of compliance with the health and safety requirements is not expected to have a material impact on our aggregate
production expenses. Nevertheless, we are unable to predict the ultimate cost of compliance.
Competition
We are in direct competition with numerous oil and natural gas companies, drilling and income programs and partnerships exploring
various areas of the Appalachian Basin and elsewhere competing for customers. Several of our competitors are large, well-known oil
and gas and/or energy companies, but no single entity dominates the industry. Many of our competitors possess greater financial and
personnel resources, sometimes enabling them to identify and acquire more economically desirable energy producing properties and
drilling prospects than us. We are more of a regional operator, and have the traditional competitive strengths of one, including recently
established contacts and in-depth knowledge of the local geography. Additionally, there is increasing competition from other fuel
choices to supply the energy needs of consumers and industry. Management believes that there exists a viable market-place for smaller
producers of natural gas and oil and for operators of smaller natural gas transmission systems.
Employees
As of the date of this Report, we have one full time employee that serves in the role of President, Vice President, Treasurer and Director.
Our sole officer and director also serve as the President and Chairman of the Board of Global Technologies, Ltd., a publicly traded
company listed on the OTC Markets “PINK” under the symbol “GTLL” and serves as the sole officer and director of AMDAQ Corp.
We plan to expand our management team within the next 12 months to include certain officers for our currently active subsidiaries and
any new subsidiaries or operational activities management deems necessary. We consider our relations with our employees and
consultants to be in good standing.
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Results of operations
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
Our results of operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 are summarized below:
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2019
$
2,500
$
1,238,159
$
(1,235,659)
$
6,031,718

Revenues
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Net income (loss)

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2018
$
2,500
$
265,123
$
(262,623)
$
(213,411)

For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, the Company generated revenue of $2,500 and $2,500 respectively. For the
three months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, the Company generated revenue of $- and $2,500, respectively.
Our operating expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $1,238,159 and $265,123, respectively.
Our operating expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 amounted to $116,9771 and $91,488, respectively.
Our net income for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 was $6,031,718 as compared to a net loss of $213,411 during the nine
months ended September 30, 2018. Our net loss for the three months ended September 30, 2019 was $252,018 as compared to net loss
of $174,461 for the three months ended September 30, 2018.
The amounts presented in the financial statements do not provide for the effect of inflation on our operations or our financial position.
Amounts shown for costs and expenses reflect historical cost and do not necessarily represent replacement cost. The net operating losses
shown would be greater than reported if the effects of inflation were reflected either by charging operations with amounts that represent
replacement costs or by using other inflation adjustments.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
The following table provides detailed information about our net cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018.

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2019
(Unaudited)
$
(153,909)
(9,773)
135,760
$
(27,922)

Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2018
(Unaudited)
$
(10,377)
(3,389 )
14,007
241

Operating Activities
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
Cash used in operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 consisted of net income as well as the effect of changes
in operating assets and liabilities as well as adjustments to reconcile net to loss to net cash used in operating activities. Cash used in
operating activities of $153,909 consisted of a net income of $6,031,718. The net loss was offset by loss of conversion of notes payable
of $130,499, amortization of debt discount of $119,953, professional fees of $576,400 and derivative liability expense of $7,598,183.
Cash used in operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 consisted of a net loss as well as the effect of changes in
operating assets and liabilities as well as adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities. Cash used in
operating activities of $10,377 consisted of a net loss of $213,411. The net loss was offset by loss of conversion of notes payable of
$30,460, amortization of debt discount of $12,227, accrued director and officer compensation of $250,442, income from modification of
non-convertible notes payable of $343,540 and derivative liability expense of $98,938.
Investing Activities
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 we used cash flow from investing activities of $(9,773) and $(3,898),
respectively.
Financing Activities
For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018
For the nine months ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 net cash provided by financing activities was $135,760 and $14,007,
respectively.
We currently have no external sources of liquidity, such as arrangements with credit institutions or off-balance sheet arrangements that
will have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition or immediate access to capital.
We are dependent on our revenue generated from consulting services and sales of equity positions we maintain in other publicly traded
entities to fund our operations and may require the sale of additional common stock to maintain operations. Our officers and directors
have made no written commitments with respect to providing a source of liquidity in the form of cash advances, loans, and/or financial
guarantees.
If we are unable to raise the funds required to fund our operations, we will seek alternative financing through other means, such as
borrowings from institutions or private individuals. There can be no assurance that we will be able to raise the capital we need for our
operations from the sale of our securities. We have not located any sources for these funds and may not be able to do so in the future.
We expect that we will seek additional financing in the future. However, we may not be able to obtain additional capital or generate
sufficient revenues to fund our operations. If we are unsuccessful at raising sufficient funds, for whatever reason, to fund our operations,
we may be forced to cease operations. If we fail to raise funds, we expect that we will be required to seek protection from creditors
under applicable bankruptcy laws.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The SEC issued Financial Reporting Release No. 60, “Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical Accounting Policies”
suggesting that companies provide additional disclosure and commentary on their most critical accounting policies. In Financial
Reporting Release No. 60, the SEC has defined the most critical accounting policies as the ones that are most important to the portrayal
of a company’s financial condition and operating results and require management to make its most difficult and subjective judgments,
often as a result of the need to make estimates of matters that are inherently uncertain. Based on this definition, we have identified the
following significant policies as critical to the understanding of our financial statements. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make a variety of estimates and assumptions that
affect (i) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and (ii) the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods covered by the financial statements. Our
management expects to make judgments and estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. As the number of
variables and assumptions affecting the future resolution of the uncertainties increase, these judgments become even more subjective
and complex. Although we believe that our estimates and assumptions are reasonable, actual results may differ significantly from these
estimates. Changes in estimates and assumptions based upon actual results may have a material impact on our results.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources
that are material to investors.
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
As a smaller reporting company, we are not required to provide this information.
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
The Company has adopted and maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that
information required to be disclosed in the reports filed under the Exchange Act, such as this Form 10-Q, is collected, recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are also designed to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to
management to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. As required under Exchange Act Rule 13a-15, the Company’s
management, including the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, has conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness
of disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, the Company’s
President concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are not effective to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by the Company in the reports that the Company files or submits under the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including the Company’s President, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.
Changes in Internal Controls
During the quarter ended September 30, 2019, there was no change in internal control over financial reporting that has materially
affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II- OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We know of no pending proceedings to which any director, member of senior management, or affiliate is either a party adverse to us or
has a material interest adverse to us.
●

None of our executive officers or directors have (i) been involved in any bankruptcy proceedings within the last five years, (ii)
been convicted in or has pending any criminal proceedings (other than traffic violations and other minor offenses), (iii) been
subject to any order, judgment or decree enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting involvement in any type of
business, securities or banking activity or (iv) been found to have violated any Federal, state or provincial securities or
commodities law and such finding has not been reversed, suspended or vacated.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Not applicable to Smaller Reporting Companies.
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ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
On January 4, 2019, the Company issued 37,500 shares of its common stock (with a fair value of $14,959) in satisfaction of $15,000 in
accounts payable due a consultant.
On January 7, 2019, the prior owner of AMDAQ, Ltd and the prior owners of the AMDAQ tokens agreed to a reduction in the number
of common shares of AMDAQ Corp that they would retain. Of the 15,000,000 shares of AMDAQ Corp common stock issued to the
prior owner of AMDAQ, Ltd, 7,500,000 were returned to AMDAQ Corp to be retired. Of the 3,000,000 shares of AMDAQ Corp
common stock issued for the purchase of the AMDAQ tokens, 1,500,000 were returned to AMDAQ Corp to be retired.
On February 7, 2019, the Company issued 594,066 shares of its common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $642
accrued interest. The $59,418 excess of the $60,060 fair value of the 594,066 shares over the $642 liability reduction was charged to
loss on conversion of debt in the three months ended March 31, 2019.
On February 14, 2019, the Company issued 3,000,000 shares of its common stock to Valvasone Trust as payment for services rendered
on behalf of the Company. The $300,000 fair value of the 3,000,000 shares was charged to professional fees in the three months ended
March 31, 2019.
On February 14, 2019, the Company issued 1,500,000 shares of its common stock to a Valvasone Trust affiliate as payment for services
rendered on behalf of the Company. The $150,000 fair value of the 1,500,000 shares was charged to professional fees in the three
months ended March 31, 2019.
On February 20, 2019, the Company issued 536,585 shares of its common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $1,100
notes payable. The $52,559 excess of the $53,659 fair value of the 536,585 shares over the $1,100 liability reduction was charged to loss
on conversion of debt in the three months ended March 31, 2019.
On April 17, 2019, the Company issued 116,822 shares of its common stock to Wayne Anderson, the Company’s chief executive officer
and sole officer and director of the Company, in satisfaction of $10,000 director’s stock-based compensation for the first quarter of
calendar year 2019.
On August 22, 2019, the Company issued 583,523 shares of its common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $345
principal and $851 interest against an outstanding note. The $7,557 excess of the $8,753 fair value of the 583,523 shares over the $1,196
liability reduction was charged to loss on conversion of debt in the three months ended September 30, 2019.
On September 9, 2019, the Company issued 1,226,583 shares of its common stock to a convertible noteholder in satisfaction of $1,300
interest against an outstanding note. The $10,966 excess of the $12,266 fair value of the 1,226,583 shares over the $1,300 liability
reduction was charged to loss on conversion of debt in the three months ended September 30, 2019.
On September 15, 2019, the Company issued 10,000,000 shares of restricted common stock for the purchase of $100,000 in inventory.
On September 25, 2019, the Company issued 6,000,000 shares of restricted common stock for the purchase of $60,000 in inventory.
Please see NOTE M - CAPITAL STOCK for further information.
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
Management Changes
Not applicable.
Acquisitions.
Not applicable.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
The following exhibits are filed as part of this report:
No.
2.1
2.2
3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8
3.9
3.10
3.11
3.12
3.13
3.14
3.15
3.16
3.17
3.18
3.19
4.1
10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9
10.10

Description
Articles of Merger US Natural Gas Corp and Wilon Resources, Inc. dated March 22, 2010 (previously filed with Form S-1
on April 11, 2019)
Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange between US Natural Gas Corp KY, Sylios Corp and TerraTech, Inc. dated
September 22, 2017 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Articles of Incorporation Adventure Energy, Inc. dated March 28, 2008 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Adventure Energy, Inc. dated April 18, 2008 (previously filed with Form S-1 on
April 11, 2019)
Bylaws of Adventure Energy, Inc. (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Adventure Energy, Inc. dated October 6, 2009 (previously filed with
Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Adventure Energy, Inc. (name change) dated March 19, 2010 (previously filed
with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of US Natural Gas Corp dated April 18, 2011 (previously filed with Form S-1 on
April 11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of US Natural Gas Corp dated August 2, 2011 (previously filed with Form S-1 on
April 11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of US Natural Gas Corp dated December 1, 2011 (previously filed with Form S-1
on April 11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of US Natural Gas Corp dated May 8, 2012 (previously filed with Form S-1 on
April 11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of US Natural Gas Corp dated November 26, 2012 (previously filed with Form S-1
on April 11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of US Natural Gas Corp dated July 19, 2013 (previously filed with Form S-1 on
April 11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of US Natural Gas Corp (name change) dated April 14, 2014 (previously filed with
Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Sylios Corp dated August 21, 2014 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11,
2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Sylios Corp dated December 3, 2014 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April
11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Sylios Corp dated October 2, 2015 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11,
2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Sylios Corp dated November 4, 2015 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April
11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Sylios Corp dated January 5, 2017 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11,
2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Sylios Corp dated December 28, 2017 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April
11, 2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of Sylios Corp dated April 20, 2018 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11,
2019)
Specimen certificate of common stock (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Wayne Anderson Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2009 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Lender Acquisition Agreement between Adventure Energy, Inc. and SLMI Holdings, LLC dated September 4, 2009
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Asset Purchase Agreement between Adventure Energy, Inc. and KYTX Oil & Gas, LLC dated November 6, 2009
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Securities Purchase Agreement between E 2 Investments, LLC and Harlis Trust dated November 10, 2009 (previously filed
with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Amendment to Securities Purchase Agreement between E 2 Investments, LLC and Harlis Trust dated December 20, 2010
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Wayne Anderson Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2015 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Wayne Anderson Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2018 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Board of Directors Services Agreement with Jimmy Wayne Anderson dated as of January 5, 2011 (previously filed with
Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Board of Directors Services Agreement with Jimmy Wayne Anderson dated as of January 2, 2018 (previously filed with
Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Indemnification Agreement between Sylios Corp and Wayne Anderson dated April 1, 2018 (previously filed with Form S-1
on April 11, 2019)
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10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26
10.27
10.28
10.29
10.30
10.31
10.32
10.33
10.34
10.35
10.36

Asset Acquisition Agreement between Sylios Corp and The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc. dated April 21, 2017
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Registration Rights Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of October 9, 2018
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Securities Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of October 9, 2018
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of October 9, 2018 (previously filed
with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of October
9, 2018 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Assignment of Secured Note and Security Agreement dated April 22, 2014 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11,
2019)
Renewal Note between Sylios Corp and SLMI Energy Holdings, LLC dated June 6, 2018 (original date September 4, 2009)
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Renewal Note between Sylios Corp and SLMI Energy Holdings, LLC dated June 6, 2018 (original date November 12, 2009)
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Securities Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of December 31, 2018,
2018 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of December 31, 2018 (previously filed
with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of
December 31, 2018 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Securities Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and Darling Capital, LLC dated as of January 9, 2019 (previously filed
with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Darling Capital, LLC dated as of January 9, 2019 (previously filed with Form
S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and Darling Capital, LLC dated as of January 9, 2019
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Securities Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of February 18, 2019
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of February 18, 2019 (previously filed
with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of February
18, 2019 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Securities Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and BHP Capital NY Inc. dated as of February 18, 2019 (previously
filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and BHP Capital NY Inc. dated as of February 18, 2019 (previously filed with Form
S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and BHP Capital NY Inc. dated as of February 18, 2019
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Securities Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and Jefferson Street Capital, LLC dated as of February 18, 2019
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Jefferson Street Capital, LLC dated as of February 18, 2019 (previously filed
with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and Jefferson Street Capital, LLC dated as of February
18, 2019 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Amended and Restated Replacement Convertible Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC
dated as of February 12, 2019 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Jefferson Street Capital, LLC dated as of May 2, 2019 (previously filed with
Form S-1/A on May 15, 2019)
Securities Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and Jefferson Street Capital, LLC dated as of May 2, 2019 (previously
filed with Form S-1/A on May 15, 2019)
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10.37
10.38
10.39
10.40
10.41
10.42
10.43
10.44
10.45
10.46
10.47
10.48
10.49
10.50
10.51
10.52
10.53
10.54
10.55
10.56
10.57
10.58
10.59
10.60
10.61
10.62
10.63
10.64

Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and Jefferson Street Capital, LLC dated as of May 2,
2019 (previously filed with Form S-1/A on May 15, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and BHP Capital NY Inc. dated as of May 2, 2019 (previously filed with Form S-1/A
on May 15, 2019)
Securities Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and BHP Capital NY Inc. dated as of May 2, 2019 (previously filed
with Form S-1/A on May 15, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and BHP Capital NY Inc. dated as of May 2, 2019
(previously filed with Form S-1/A on May 15, 2019)
Secured Note between US Natural Gas Corp WV (f/k/a Wilon Resources, Inc. and MTEL Investment and Management
dated January 5, 2010 (previously filed on Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Loan Agreement between US Natural Gas Corp KY and Mt. Atlas Consulting, LLC dated November 17, 2017 (previously
filed on Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and Pacific Stock Transfer Company dated August 11, 2017 (previously filed on
Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Note between US Natural Gas Corp and Tangiers Investment Group, LLC dated April 2, 2014 (previously filed
on Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Note between US Natural Gas Corp and Tangiers Investment Group, LLC dated April 28, 2014 (previously filed
on Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Note between US Natural Gas Corp and Tangiers Investment Group, LLC dated June 2, 2014 (previously filed
on Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Tangiers Investment Group, LLC dated August 12, 2014 (previously filed on
Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Tangiers Investment Group, LLC dated July 3, 2014 (previously filed on Form
S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Tangiers Investment Group, LLC dated June 3, 2015 (previously filed on Form
S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Tangiers Investment Group, LLC dated March 16, 2016 (previously filed on
Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Tangiers Investment Group, LLC dated January 27, 2017 (previously filed on
Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and Darling Capital, LLC dated January 28, 2017 (previously filed on
Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and Darling Capital, LLC dated February 2, 2017 (previously filed on
Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and Darling Capital, LLC dated February 13, 2017 (previously filed on
Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and Darling Capital, LLC dated March 7, 2017 (previously filed on Form
S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Promissory Note between US Natural Gas Corp and Valvasone Trust dated October 7, 2013 (previously filed on Form S-1/A
on June 17, 2019)
Promissory Note between US Natural Gas Corp and Valvasone Trust dated March 30, 2014 (previously filed on Form S-1/A
on June 17, 2019)
Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and Valvasone Trust dated January 11, 2016 (previously filed on Form S-1/A on June
17, 2019)
Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and Valvasone Trust dated July 1, 2017 (previously filed on Form S-1/A on June 17,
2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of June 5, 2019 (previously filed on
Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Securities Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of June 5, 2019
(previously filed on Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of June 5,
2019 (previously filed on Form S-1/A on June 17, 2019)
Convertible Note between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of July 2, 2019 (previously filed on
Form 8-K on July 9, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated as of July 2,
2019 (previously filed on Form 8-K on July 9, 2019)
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10.78
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31.1
31.2
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Securities Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC, BHP Capital NY Inc and Fourth
Man, LLC dated July 25, 2019 (previously filed on Form 8-K on July 31, 2019)
Convertible Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated July 29, 2019 (previously filed
on Form 8-K on July 31, 2019)
Convertible Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and BHP Capital NY Inc. dated July 29, 2019 (previously filed on Form
8-K on July 31, 2019)
Convertible Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and Fourth Man, LLC dated July 29, 2019 (previously filed on Form 8-K
on July 31, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated July 29, 2019
(previously filed on Form 8-K on July 31, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and BHP Capital NY Inc dated July 29, 2019 (previously
filed on Form 8-K on July 31, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and Fourth Man, LLC dated July 29, 2019 (previously
filed on Form 8-K on July 31, 2019)
Consulting Agreement between the Company and Global Technologies, Ltd dated August 22, 2019
Securities Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and BHP Capital NY Inc. and Fourth Man, LLC dated October 16,
2019 (previously filed on Form 8-K on October 18, 2019)
Convertible Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and BHP Capital NY Inc. dated October 16, 2019 (previously filed on
Form 8-K on October 18, 2019)
Convertible Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and Fourth Man, LLC dated October 16, 2019 (previously filed on Form
8-K on October 18, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and BHP Capital NY Inc. dated October 16, 2019
(previously filed on Form 8-K on October 18, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and Fourth Man, LLC dated October 16, 2019
(previously filed on Form 8-K on October 18, 2019)
Inventory Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and Wanshan Engineering Services, LLC dated September 12, 2019
(previously filed on Form 8-K on October 30, 2019)
Inventory Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and Wanshan Engineering Services, LLC dated September 21, 2019
(previously filed on Form 8-K on October 30, 2019)
Securities Purchase Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated October 30, 2019 (previously
filed on Form 8-K on November 4, 2019)
Convertible Promissory Note between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated October 30, 2019 (previously
filed on Form 8-K on November 4, 2019)
Common Stock Purchase Warrant Agreement between Sylios Corp and Armada Investment Fund, LLC dated October 30,
2019 (previously filed on Form 8-K on November 4, 2019)
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Articles of Incorporation US Natural Gas Corp KY dated February 8, 2010 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11,
2019)
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation to US Natural Gas Corp KY dated March 22, 2010 (previously filed with Form S-1
on April 11, 2019)
Articles of Organization for E 2 Investments, LLC dated July 22, 2009 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Certificate for Conversion and Articles of Incorporation for AMDAQ Corp dated August 29, 2017 (previously filed with
Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Articles of Organization for The Greater Cannabis Company, LLC dated March 20, 2014 (previously filed with Form S-1 on
April 11, 2019)
Certificate of Conversion and Articles of Incorporation for The Greater Cannabis Company, Inc. dated January 13, 2017
(previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Articles of Incorporation E 3 Petroleum Corp dated February 8, 2010 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Articles of Incorporation US Natural Gas Corp WV dated July 6, 2010 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Articles of Organization SLMI Options, LLC dated June 17, 2008 (previously filed with Form S-1 on April 11, 2019)
Articles of Organization 1720 RCMG, LLC dated July 22, 2019 (previously filed with Form 10-Q dated August 19, 2019)
Articles of Organization 5496 NRMF, LLC dated October 16, 2019 (previously filed with Form 8-K dated November 1,
2019)
Subsidiaries of the Registrant
Corporate logo- Sylios Corp
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13(a)-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (filed herewith).
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13(a)-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (filed herewith).
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith).

XBRL Exhibits will be filed by subsequent amendment.
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ITEM 7. SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
Signatures

Title

Date

/s/ Jimmy Wayne Anderson

President (Principal Executive Officer), Acting Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting Officer) and Chairman of the Board of Directors

November 19, 2019
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CONSULTING AGREEMENT
This Consulting Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this 22nd day of August 2019, by and between
Global Technologies, Ltd (hereinafter the “Company”), a Delaware corporation whose address is 501 1st Ave N., Suite 901, St.
Petersburg, FL 33701 and Sylios Corp (hereinafter the “Consultant”), a Florida corporation whose address is 501 1st Ave N., Suite
901, St. Petersburg, FL 33701, (individually, a “Party”; collectively, the “Parties”). This Agreement is non-exclusive.
RECITALS
WHEREAS, the Company has asked to retain Consultant to provide various services to the Company as agreed to by both
parties and outlined in Section 3; and
WHEREAS, the Consultant has advised the Company of its willingness and desire to provide such services as outlined in
Section 3 and on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, the Parties hereto hereby agree as follows:
1. CONDITIONS. This Agreement will not take effect, and Consultant will have no obligation to provide any service whatsoever,
unless and until the Company sends a signed copy of this Agreement to Consultant (either by mail or facsimile copy). The Company
shall be truthful with Consultant in regard to any relevant material regarding the Company, verbally or otherwise, or this entire
Agreement will terminate and all consideration paid shall be forfeited without further notice.
Upon execution of this Agreement, the Company agrees to cooperate with Consultant in carrying out the purposes of this
Agreement, keep Consultant informed of any developments of importance pertaining to the Company’s business and abide by this
Agreement in its entirety.
2. TERM OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect commencing on August 22, 2019 and shall remain in
effect for six (6) months or until Consultant completes the services requested. Either Party shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement without notice in the event of the bankruptcy, insolvency, or assignment for the benefit of creditors of the other Party. Either
Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with notice, and the effective date of termination shall be the date such notice is
received (by mail, overnight delivery, or fax) by the terminated Party.
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3. CONSULTING SERVICES. During the term of this Agreement, Consultant will perform the services described below (the
“Consulting Services”) for the Company.
(a) Transactional Business
(i) Identification of potential Qualifying Transaction candidates; and
(ii) Provision of preliminary financial analysis of candidates; and
(iii) Assist in negotiating acquisition or merger consideration as required by Company; and
(iv) Setting up meetings between Company and candidates and arranging other liaisons between them; and
(v) Assist the Company with certain day to day tasks of managing a public company.
4. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. Consultant shall devote such time and efforts to the affairs of the Company as is reasonably
necessary to render the services contemplated by this Agreement. Consultant is not responsible for the performance of any services that
may be rendered hereunder if the Company fails to provide the requested information in writing prior thereto. The services of Consultant
shall not include the rendering of any legal opinions or the performance of any work that is in the ordinary purview of a certified public
accountant. Consultant cannot guarantee results on behalf of the Company, but shall use commercially reasonable efforts in providing
the services listed above. Consultant’s duty is to identify prospective acquisition/joint venture companies for the Company. Consultant
will in no way act as a “broker-dealer” under state securities laws. Because all final decisions pertaining to any particular investment are
to be made by the Company, the Company may be required to communicate directly with potential acquisition/joint venture prospective
companies.
5. COMPENSATION TO CONSULTANT. As Consultant’s entire compensation for its performance under this agreement, the
Company shall pay Consultant $50,000 through the issuance of ten (10) shares of the Company’s Series L Preferred Stock. The
Company shall deliver the shares of Series L Preferred Stock on or before September 15, 2019. These shares and the shares of the
Company’s common stock to be issued upon conversion of the Series L Preferred Stock shall be deemed earned upon execution of this
Agreement. The Consultant will be solely responsible for all tax returns and payments required to be filed with or made to any federal,
state or local tax authority with respect to the Consultant’s performance of services and receipt of fees under this Agreement. The
Company will regularly report amounts paid, if any, to the Consultant by filing Form 1099-MISC and/or other appropriate form with the
Internal Revenue Service as required by law. Because the Consultant is an independent contractor, the Company will not withhold or
make payments for social security; make consulting contract insurance or disability insurance contributions; or obtain worker’s
compensation insurance on the Consultant’s behalf. The Consultant agrees to accept exclusive liability for complying with all applicable
state and federal laws governing self-employed individuals, including obligations such as payment of taxes, social security, disability
and other contributions based on fees paid to the Consultant under this Agreement. The Consultant hereby agrees to indemnify and
defend the Company against any and all such taxes or contributions, including penalties and interest.
6. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. The Consultant and the Company acknowledge that each will have access to proprietary
information regarding the business operations of the other and agree to keep all such information secret and confidential and not to use
or disclose any such information to any individual or organization without the non-disclosing Parties prior written consent. It is hereby
agreed that from time to time Consultant and the Company may designate certain disclosed information as confidential for purposes of
this Agreement.
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7. INDEMNIFICATION. Each Party (the “Indemnifying Party”) agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other Party (the
“Indemnified Party”) from and against any and all claims, damages, and liabilities, including any and all expense and costs, legal or
otherwise, caused by the negligent act or omission of the Indemnifying Party, its subcontractors, agents, or employees, incurred by the
Indemnified Party in the investigation and defense of any claim, demand, or action arising out of the work performed under this
Agreement; including breach of the Indemnifying Party of this Agreement. The Indemnifying Party shall not be liable for any claims,
damages, or liabilities caused by the sole negligence of the Indemnified Party, its subcontractors, agents, or employees.
The Indemnified Party shall notify promptly the Indemnifying Party of the existence of any claim, demand, or other matter to
which the Indemnifying Party’s indemnification obligations would apply, and shall give them a reasonable opportunity to settle or
defend the same at their own expense and with counsel of their own selection, provided that the Indemnified Party shall at all times also
have the right to fully participate in the defense. If the Indemnifying Party, within a reasonable time after this notice, fails to take
appropriate steps to settle or defend the claim, demand, or the matter, the Indemnified Party shall, upon written notice, have the right,
but not the obligation, to undertake such settlement or defense and to compromise or settle the claim, demand, or other matter on behalf,
for the account, and at the risk, of the Indemnifying Party.
The rights and obligations of the Parties under this Article shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of any successors,
assigns, and heirs of the Parties.
8. COVENANTS OF CONSULTANT. Consultant covenants and agrees with the Company that, in performing Consulting Services
under this Agreement, Consultant will:
(a) Comply with all federal and state laws;
(b) Not make any representations other than those authorized by the Company; and
(c) Not publish, circulate or otherwise use any materials or documents other than materials provided by or otherwise approved
by the Company.
9. COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY. The Company covenants, represents and warrants to Consultant as follows:
(a) Authorization. The Company and its signatories herein have full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to
carry out the transactions contemplated hereby.
(b) No Violation. Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby will violate any provision of the charter or by-laws of the Company or violate any terms of provision of any other
material agreement to which the Company is a party or any applicable statute or law.
(c) Contracts in Full Force and Effect. All contracts, agreements, plans, policies and licenses to which the Company is a
party are valid and in full force and effect.
(d) Consents. No consent of any person, other than the signatories hereto, is necessary to the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby, including, without limitation, consents from parties to loans, contracts, lease or other agreements and
consents from governmental agencies, whether federal, state, or local.
3

(e) Consultant Reliance. Consultant has and will rely upon the documents, instruments and written information furnished to
Consultant by the Company’s officers or designated employees.
(f) Company’s Material. All representations and statements provided herein about the Company are true and complete and
accurate. The Company agrees to indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Consultant, its officers, directors, agents and
employees, at the Company’s expense for any proceeding or suit which may rise out of any inaccuracy or incompleteness of
any such material or written information supplied to Consultant.
10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
(a) Amendment and Modification. This Agreement may be amended, modified and supplemented only by written agreement
of the Company and Consultant.
(b) Waiver of Compliance. Any failure of Consultant, on the one hand, or the Company, on the other, to comply with any
obligation, agreement, or condition herein may be expressly waived in writing, but such waiver or failure to insist upon strict
compliance with such obligation, covenant, agreement or condition shall not operate as a waiver of, or estoppel with respect to,
any subsequent or other failure.
(c) Expenses, Transfer Taxes, Etc. Other than as expressly set forth in this Agreement, the Parties shall bear their own costs
and expenses in carrying out the provisions of this Agreement.
(d) Compliance with Regulatory Agencies. Each Party agrees that all actions, direct or indirect, taken by it and its respective
agents, employees and affiliates in connection with this Agreement and any financing or underwriting hereunder shall conform
to all applicable Federal and State securities laws.
(e) Notices. Any notices to be given hereunder by any Party to the other may be effected either by personal delivery in writing,
by a reputable, national overnight delivery service, by facsimile transmission or by mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid
with return receipt requested. Notices shall be addressed to the “Contact Person” at the addresses appearing on the signature
page of this Agreement, but any Party may change his address or “Contact Person” by written notice in accordance with this
subsection. Notices delivered personally shall be deemed delivered as of actual receipt, notices sent by facsimile shall be
deemed delivered one (1) day after electronic confirmation of receipt, notices sent by overnight delivery service shall be
deemed delivered one (1) day after delivery to the service, mailed notices shall be deemed delivered as of five (5) days after
mailing.
(f) Assignment. This Agreement and all of the provisions hereof shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties
hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.
(g) Delegation. Neither Party shall delegate the performance of its duties under this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the other Party.
(h) Publicity. Neither Consultant nor the Company shall make or issue or cause to be made or issued, any announcement or
written statement concerning this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby for dissemination to the general public
without the prior consent of the other Party. This provision shall not apply, however, to any announcement or written statement
required to be made by law or the regulations of any Federal or State governmental agency, except that the Party required to
disclose shall consult with and make reasonable efforts to accommodate changes to the required disclosure and the timing of
such announcement suggested by the other Party.
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(i) Arbitration and Governing Law. If a dispute arises out of or relates to this contract, or the breach thereof, and if the
dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, the parties agree first to try in good faith to settle the dispute by mediation
administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Commercial Mediation Procedures before resorting to
arbitration, litigation, or some other dispute resolution procedure. If they do not reach such solution within a period of 60 days,
then, upon notice by either party to the other, all disputes, claims, questions, or differences shall be finally settled by arbitration
administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with the provisions of its Commercial Arbitration Rules.
This Agreement and the legal relations among the Parties hereto shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of Florida, without regard to its conflict of law doctrine. The Parties agree that the venue for the resolution of
all disputes arising under the terms of this Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein will be the County of Pinellas,
State of Florida.
(j) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
(k) Headings. The heading of the sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not constitute a part
hereto or affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
(l) Entire Agreement. This Agreement including any Exhibits hereto, and the other documents and certificates delivered
pursuant to the terms hereto, set forth the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties hereto in respect of the subject
matter contained herein, and supersedes all prior agreements, promise, covenants, arrangements, communications,
representations or warranties, whether oral or written, by any officers employee or representative of any Party hereto.
(m) Third Parties. Except as specifically set forth or referred to herein, nothing herein express or implied is intended or shall
be construed to confer upon or give to any person or entity other than the Parties hereto and their successors or assigns, any
rights or remedies under or by reason of this Agreement.
(n) Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. If any action is necessary to enforce and collect upon the terms of this Agreement, the
prevailing Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, in addition to any other relief to which that Party may
be entitled. This provision shall be construed as applicable to the entire Agreement.
(o) Survivability. If any part of this Agreement is found, or deemed by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or
unenforceable, that part shall be severable from the remainder of the Agreement.
(p) Further Assurances. Each of the Parties agrees that it shall from time-to-time take such actions and execute such
additional instruments as may be reasonably necessary or convenient to implement and carry out the intent and purposes of this
Agreement.
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(q) Relationship of the Parties. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute either Party becoming the
partner of the other, the agent or legal representative of the other, nor create any fiduciary relationship between them, except as
otherwise expressly provided herein. It is not the intention of the Parties to create nor shall this Agreement be construed to
create any commercial relationship or other partnership. Neither Party shall have any authority to act for or to assume any
obligation or responsibility on behalf of the other Party, except as otherwise expressly provided herein. The rights, duties,
obligations and liabilities of the Parties shall be separate, not joint or collective. Each Party shall be responsible only for its
obligations as herein set out and shall be liable only for its share of the costs and expenses as provided herein.
(r) No Authority to Obligate the Company. Without the consent of the Board of Directors of the Company, Consultant shall
have no authority to take, nor shall it take, any action committing or obligating the Company in any manner, and it shall not
represent itself to others as having such authority.
11. Non-Circumvention. In and for valuable consideration, the Company hereby agrees that Consultant may introduce (whether by
written, oral, data, or other form of communication) the Company to one or more opportunities, including, without limitation, existing or
potential investors, lenders, borrowers, trusts, natural persons, corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, unincorporated
businesses, sole proprietorships and similar entities (an “Opportunity” or “Opportunities”). The Company further acknowledges and
agrees that the identity of the subject Opportunities, and all other information concerning an Opportunity (including without limitation,
all mailing information, phone and fax numbers, email addresses and other contact information) introduced hereunder are the property
of Consultant, and shall be treated as confidential information by the Company, it affiliates, officers, directors, shareholders, employees,
agents, representatives, successors and assigns. The Company shall not use such information, except in the context of any arrangement
with Consultant in which Consultant is directly and actively involved, and never without Consultant’s prior written approval. The
Company further agrees that neither it nor its employees, affiliates or assigns, shall enter into, or otherwise arrange (either for
it/him/herself, or any other person or entity) any business relationship, contact any person regarding such Opportunity, either directly or
indirectly, or any of its affiliates, or accept any compensation or advantage in relation to such Opportunity except as directly though
Consultant, without the prior written approval of Consultant. Consultant is relying on the Company’s assent to these terms and their
intent to be bound by the terms by evidence of their signature. Without the Company’s signed assent to these terms, Consultant would
not introduce any Opportunity or disclose any confidential information to the Company as herein described.
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IN WITNESS, WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed, all as of the day and year first
above written.
COMPANY:
GLOBAL TECHNOLOGIES, LTD
501 First Ave N, Suite 901
St. Petersburg, FL 33701

CONSULTANT:
SYLIOS CORP
501 First Ave N, Suite 901
St. Petersburg, FL 33701

By:

By:

/s/ Jimmy Wayne Anderson
Jimmy Wayne Anderson
Its: Chairman and CEO
Date: August 22, 2019

/s/ Jimmy Wayne Anderson
Jimmy Wayne Anderson
Its: President and Chairman
Dated:August 22, 2019
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Jimmy Wayne Anderson, Chief Executive Officer of Sylios Corp, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2019 of Sylios Corp;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4.

I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.

I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

November 19, 2019

/s/ Jimmy Wayne Anderson
Chief Executive Officer
Sylios Corp
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
I, Jimmy Wayne Anderson, Principal Financial Officer of Sylios Corp, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Sylios Corp for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2019;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report;

4.

I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:
a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5.

I have disclosed, based on my most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the
audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.
Date: November 19, 2019
By:

/s/ Jimmy Wayne Anderson
Principal Financial Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of Sylios Corp (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending September 30,
2019, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jimmy Wayne Anderson, Chief
Executive Officer of Sylios Corp, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of
operations of the Company.
/s/ Jimmy Wayne Anderson
Chief Executive Officer
November 19, 2019

